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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may be ‘‘forward-looking statements.” Forward-looking statements are not historical facts but include, but are not limited
to, statements that express our intentions, beliefs, expectations, strategies, predictions or any other statements relating to our future activities or other future events or conditions.
These statements are based on current expectations, estimates and projections about our business based, in part, on assumptions made by management. These statements are not
guarantees of future performance and involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict.

Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of terminology such as “estimates,” “projects,” “plans,” “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” or the negative or
other variations, or by discussions of strategy that involve risks and uncertainties. We urge you to be cautious of the forward-looking statements which are contained in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K because they reflect our current beliefs with respect to future events and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors affecting our
operations, market growth, services, products and licenses. No assurances can be given regarding the achievement of future results, as actual results may differ materially as a result
of the risks we face, and actual events may differ from the assumptions underlying the statements that have been made regarding anticipated events. Factors that may cause actual
results, our performance or achievements, or industry results, to differ materially from those contemplated by such forward-looking statements include, without limitation:

” o o

Our ability to maintain sufficient liquidity;

Our ability to attract and retain key personnel and temporary workers;

Our ability to collect account receivables;

Our ability to manage the growth of our operations and effectively integrate acquisitions;
Our ability to retain our key customers and market share;

Our ability to compete for suitable merger prospects;

Our ability to successfully integrate future acquisitions;

Our ability to satisfy our service level agreements;

Our ability to effectively manage our backlog;

The impact of legislative actions and significant regulations on our business;

Our ability to adapt to swift changes in the telecommunications industry;

The effectiveness of our physical infrastructure and services;

Fluctuations in general conditions;

Our ability to comply with regulations;

The effects of any employment related to other claims against our business;

Our ability to maintain workers’ compensation insurance coverage at commercially reasonable terms; and
Our ability to raise capital when needed and on acceptable terms and conditions.

All written and oral forward-looking statements made in connection with this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly
qualified in their entirety by these cautionary statements. Any forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made, and we do not undertake any obligation to
update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Given the uncertainties that surround such statements, you
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements.




PART 1
Item 1. Business.
FTE Networks, Inc. (FTNW), and its wholly owned subsidiaries, is a leading international networking infrastructure service solutions company. The Company designs, build, and
support telecommunications and technology systems and infrastructure services for Fortune 500 companies operating four (4) telecommunications markets; Data Center Infrastructure,
Fiber Optics, Wireless Integration, and Surveillance & Security. FTE Networks is headquartered in Naples, Florida, with offices throughout the United States and Europe.
® Jus-Com, Inc., (dba FTE Network Services) specializes in the design, engineering, installation, and maintenance of all forms of telecommunications infrastructure. Services include
engineering consulting, design, installation, maintenance, and emergency response in various categories including cabling, equipment installation and configuration, rack and stack,

wiring build-outs, infrastructure build-outs, DC power installation, OSP/ISP fiber placement, fiber cable splicing and testing.

o FTE Wireless, LLC, offers wireless solutions to major wireless carriers including equipment installation, fiber backhaul, antennae installation and testing, small cell solutions, fiber-
to-site and other turnkey solutions as needed by such clients.

e Focus Venture Partners, Inc. (dba FVP Worx) is a multifaceted employment firm offering full service staffing solutions, specializing in the telecommunications, technology and
construction services industries.

FTE Network Services and FTE Wireless Service, LLC are reported in the Company’s telecommunications segment. FVP Worx represents the Company’s staffing segment.
CORPORATE HISTORY

Prior to Beacon Merger

Beacon Enterprise Solutions Group

Beacon Enterprise Solutions Group, Inc. (“Beacon”) was incorporated in the state of Nevada on December 30, 2007. On September 5, 2012 Beacon sold its operating assets and
Beacon ceased its business operations, in order to meet its financial obligations and avoid bankruptcy, but maintained its public company “shell” status.

Focus Venture Partners, Inc.

Focus Venture Partners, Inc. (“Focus™) was incorporated in the state of Nevada on March 26, 2012 as a holding company operating in the telecommunications industry managing and
developing its wholly owned subsidiaries, which were focused on the development of telecommunications networks, acting as a service and support provider, as well as providing
temporary and part-time staffing solutions.

Through Optos Capital Partners, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Optos™), its wholly owned subsidiary, Focus operated the following wholly owned entities:

e Focus Fiber Solutions, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Focus Fiber”), which specialized in the design, engineering, installation, and maintenance of a
telecommunications infrastructure network.

e JusCom, Inc., an Indiana corporation (“JusCom”), which was a telecommunication service provider providing various services including engineering consulting, design, installation
and emergency response in various categories including cable rack/wiring buildouts, infrastructure buildouts, DC power installation, fiber cable splicing and security camera
installation. JusCom also operated as a temporary and permanent staffing agency specializing in the telecommunications market. Prior to the Beacon Merger, Focus reorganized such
that Jus-Com became a subsidiary of Focus, and was no longer a subsidiary of Optos.




Beacon Merger

On May 10, 2013, Beacon and Beacon Acquisition Sub, Inc. a Nevada corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Beacon (the “Merger Sub”) entered into a merger agreement with
Focus (the “Merger Agreement”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Merger Sub merged with and into Focus, with Focus continuing as the surviving corporation, with the result
that Focus became a subsidiary of Beacon (the “Beacon Merger”). The closing of the merger took place on June 19, 2013.

For accounting purposes, the Beacon Merger has been treated as an acquisition of Beacon, and a recapitalization of Focus Venture Partners. The historical consolidated financial
statements prior to June 19, 2013 are those of Focus Venture Partners. In connection with the Beacon Merger, Focus Venture Partners has restated its statements of stockholders’
deficiency on a recapitalization basis so that all equity accounts are presented as if the recapitalization had occurred as of the beginning of the earliest period presented.

In connection with the Beacon Merger, the Board of Directors authorized the designation of a new series of preferred stock, the Beacon Series D Shares, out of its available “blank
check preferred stock™ and authorized the issuance of up to 2,000,000 Beacon Series D Shares. We filed a Certificate of Designation with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada
on June 17, 2013. Under the Certificate of Designation, each Beacon Series D Share has various rights, privileges and preferences, including: (i) a stated value of $4.00 per share; (ii)
mandatory conversion into 20 shares of Common Stock (subject to adjustments) upon the filing of the amendment to our Articles of Incorporation after incorporating the 1 for 20
reverse stock split of the outstanding shares of common stock required by the Merger Agreement (and an effective increase in the Company’s authorized common stock); and (iii) a
liquidation preference in the amount of the stated value.

In connection with the Beacon Merger the Board of Directors authorized the designation of a new series of preferred stock, the Beacon Series E Shares, out of its available “blank
check preferred stock™ and authorized the issuance of up to 1,000,000 Beacon Series E Shares. We filed a Certificate of Designation with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada
on June 17, 2013. Under the Certificate of Designation, each Beacon Series E Share has various rights, privileges and preferences, including (i) a liquidation value of $1.00 per share
(subject to adjustments); (ii) mandatory redemption of 10,000 shares per month at the liquidation value; and (iii) conversion at the option of the Company of all outstanding Beacon
Series E Shares at a price equal to half the liquidation value after 48 mandatory redemption payments have been made.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement: (i) shares of Series B Preferred Stock of Focus, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Focus Preferred B Shares™) and common stock of
Focus, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Focus Common Stock”) were converted into the right to receive an aggregate of 1,250,011 shares of Beacon Series D Preferred Shares, par
value $0.01 per share); (ii) all shares of Series A Preferred Stock of Focus, par value $0.0001 per share, were converted into the right to receive an aggregate number of 1,000,000
shares of Beacon Series E shares, par value $0.01 per share, (iii) all shares of capital stock of Merger Sub were converted into one share of Focus Common Stock. Each Beacon Series
D and Beacon Series E share is entitled to vote alongside the common stockholders and has 20 and 1 vote(s) each, respectively. The Beacon Series E shares were subject to redemption
and were recorded as a liability, but the shares were returned to the Company and derecognized on September 30, 2013. The Beacon Merger represented a change of control of Beacon
and Focus management became responsible for the consolidated entity.

The consideration issued in the Merger was determined as a result of arm’s length negotiations between the parties.
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Changes Resulting from the Merger

Our mission is to expand the operations of Jus-Com Inc. dba FTE Network Services as our primary line of business. Jus-Com is headquartered in Naples, Florida specializing in the
design, engineering, installation, construction and maintenance of telecommunications and technology networks and infrastructure.

Following the Beacon Merger, on March 13, 2014, Beacon changed its name to “FTE Networks, Inc.” (“FTE” or the “Company”). JusCom began doing business as FTE Network
Services (“FTE Network Services”) - a turn-key infrastructure services company. Focus Venture Partners began doing business as FVP Worx, Inc., offering full service staffing

solutions. Optos Capital Partners remains for the purpose of future diversification opportunities. The following graphic depicts our organization following the Beacon Merger and the
organizational changes described above, and represents the current organization of the Company:

| FTE Networks Inc |

F s Vent
GebarvEnture FTE Holdings, LLC FTE Wireless, LLC
Partners Inc

Optos Capital
Partners LLC

4' Jus-Com, Inc |
Focus Fiber
Solutions, LLC
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS
The Registration and Trading of Our Securities

Prior to September 12, 2014 (the “Revocation Date”), our Common Stock was registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).
Pursuant to such registration, the Company was subject to the requirements of Regulation 13(a) of the Exchange Act which required us to file with the SEC, in part, annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K, and to comply with all other obligations of the Exchange Act applicable to issuers filing registration
statements pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act.

After we ceased our business operations and became a public company “shell” on September 5, 2012, we fell behind on the compilation of our books and records, due to challenges
related to staffing, access to historical data and insufficient funding. Consequently, we failed to comply with the reporting requirements of Regulation 13(a) of the Exchange Act.
Further, the Company underestimated the time that it would take for the registrant to access and analyze the historical data to enable it to become current in its financial reporting. As a
result, on August 20, 2014, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), via Release No. 72872, ordered the commencement of an Administrative Proceeding (File No.
3-16024) with respect to the Company. The SEC observed and asserted that the Company had failed to comply with its obligations under Exchange Act Section 13(a) and Rules 13a-1

and 13a-13 thereunder because the Company had not filed any periodic reports with the SEC since the period ended June 30, 2012. Also on August 20, 2014, in connection with the
foregoing, the SEC announced the temporary suspension of trading in the securities of the Company.

Subsequently, on September 8, 2014, the Company entered into an Offer of Settlement with the SEC regarding the Administrative Proceeding (File No. 3-16024) whereby, in part, the
Company consented to the entry of an Order by the SEC containing the findings that: (1) the Company was a Nevada corporation located in Naples, Florida with a class of securities
registered with the Commission under Exchange Act Section 12(g) and as of August 18, 2014, the common stock of the Company (symbol FTNW) was quoted on OTC Link (formerly
“Pink Sheets™) operated by OTC Markets Inc., had ten market makers, and was eligible for the “piggyback” exception of Exchange Act Rule15c2-11(f)(3); (2) the Company had failed
to comply with Exchange Act Section 13(a) and Rules 13a-1 and 13a-13 thereunder because it had not filed any periodic reports with the SEC since the period ended June 30, 2012; and
that on the basis of the foregoing (3) pursuant to Section 12(j) of the Exchange Act, registration of each class of the Company’s securities registered pursuant to Exchange Act Section
12 be revoked.

As such, on the Revocation Date, via Release No. 73085, the SEC ordered that, effective immediately pursuant to Section 12(j) of the Exchange Act, the registration of each class of
the Company’s securities registered pursuant to Exchange Act Section 12 be revoked.

Following the above described revocation of registration, on March 17, 2015 we filed a registration statement on Form 10, to once again register our Common Stock pursuant to
Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act. On May 16, 2015, the registration statement became effective, and we are again subject to the requirements of Regulation 13(a) of the Exchange
Act, which requires us to file, in part, annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K, and we are required to comply with all other
obligations of the Exchange Act applicable to issuers filing registration statements pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act.

On December 10, 2015, our common stock resumed trading on the OTC Pink marketplace. As of December 31, 2016, our common stock is trading on the OTCQX marketplace.
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Authorization of Series F Preferred Stock

The Board of Directors of the Company authorized the designation of a new series of preferred stock, the Series F Stock (“Series F Stock™), out of its available “blank check preferred
stock” and authorized the issuance of up to 1,980,000 shares of the Series F Stock. A Certificate of Designation was filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada on
November 2, 2015. The Series F Stock has various rights, privileges and preferences, including: (i) a stated value of $4.00 per share; (ii) conversion into 20 shares of Common Stock
(subject to adjustments) upon the filing of an amendment to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation incorporating a reverse stock split; and (iii) a liquidation preference in the amount
of the stated value.

Entry into a Credit Facility and Repayment of Senior Secured Notes

On November 3, 2015, the Company entered into a credit agreement (the “Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company received $8 million in term loans from Lateral Investment
Management (“Lateral”). A portion of the proceeds was used to extinguish an aggregate principal amount of approximately $3.4 million of Senior Secured Promissory Notes, pursuant
to a tender offer. The noteholders who tendered their notes received the tender offer consideration of $0.50 per $1 principal amount of the Notes from the proceeds from the term loan,
and all interest payable on the notes was forgiven. The Company recognized approximately a $3.4 million gain related to the extinguishment of the Senior Secured Promissory Notes.

In connection with the agreement, the Company issued 555,344 shares of preferred stock to Lateral, 163,441 designated as Series D preferred stock and 391,903 designated as Series F
preferred stock. Upon the approval of the reverse split of common stock on or about May 26, 2016, these preferred shares mandatorily converted to 11,106,880 shares of common
stock, based upon their 1 for 20 conversion rate. The Company and Lateral also entered into a registration rights agreement (“Registration Rights Agreement”) in connection with the
issuance of these shares, pursuant to which the Company must file a registration statement with the SEC, with respect to the shares. Lateral may request redemption of some or all of
its shares any time after October 28, 2017, subject to the Company (a) meeting certain minimum capitalization and EBITDA requirements; and (b) being able to continue as a going
concern on a post-redemption basis. The redemption price per share is variable and equals 10 (ten) times the last twelve months EBITDA, multiplied by the Lateral fully-diluted
ownership percentage and then divided by the Lateral shares outstanding. In addition, Lateral was granted anti-dilution rights which permit it to receive additional equity securities to
maintain its fully-diluted ownership interest to the extent that the Company issues equity securities to third parties, up to a maximum of $5,000,000. On April 5, 2016, the Company
entered into an amendment agreement to its existing credit facility with Lateral, amending the original credit agreement signed October 28, 2015. The agreement amends select
provisions of the original credit agreement, including equity raises and changes to certain financial and operational covenants. On September 30, 2016, the Company entered into a
second amendment agreement to its existing credit facility, maturing October 28, 2017, amending the original credit agreement signed October 28, 2015. The agreement was amended
solely to consolidate a series of short term bridge loans granted to the company from time to time during the second and third quarter of 2016 into a 2.5 million loan, which matures on
April 30, 2017. The second amendment also amended the covenants related to consolidated EBITDA, consolidated leverage, consolidated debt service, selling, general, and
administrative expenses, and compensation expense. On April 20, 2017, in conjunction with the acquisition of Benchmark Builders Inc, Lateral amended the original credit agreement
to provide for approximately $10.1 million towards the cash purchase price of the Benchmark acquisition, refinancing this new advance with the existing debt, extending the maturity
date of the facility to March 31, 2019.

Reverse Split of Common Stock

On December 23, 2015, the Board unanimously authorized and approved an amendment to our Articles of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split of our Common Stock at a 1-for-
20 ratio (the “Reverse Split”). On December 30, 2015, stockholders holding a majority of our voting power approved by written consent the amendment to our Articles of
Incorporation, which would affect the Reverse Split. The Reverse Split will reduce the number of outstanding shares of our Common Stock by reclassifying and converting all
outstanding shares of our Common Stock into a proportionately fewer number of shares of Common Stock. On March 9, 2016, the Company filed a Form Pre-14C with the SEC
concerning the 1 for 20 reverse stock split and the increase of the authorized shares of common stock from 70,000,000 to 200,000,000. On April 18, 2016, the Company filed its
Definitive Form 14-C with the SEC. On May 25, 2016 “FINRA” approved the Reverse Split, which was effectuated on May 26, 2016. All share and share information in this
transitional report have been retroactively restated for the reverse split.

Officer/Strategic Board Appointments

On July 28, 2016, the Board of Directors of FTE Networks, Inc. (the “Company”) approved the appointment of Michael Bonewitz as the Company’s Chief Technology Officer
commencing on August 24, 2016 and has replaced Carlie Ancor who will transition into a new role supporting the Company’s major account sales strategy. Mr. Bonewitz has over 20
years of senior management experience in communications network engineering and information technology industries developing cutting edge capabilities via advanced IT
automation and data analytics driving operational and financial performance. Prior to FTE, he was VP of Strategy and Product Development for Cloud services, Fiber engineering and
construction at Nexius where he developed and launched the company’s first fiber deployment program supporting multiple Tier 1 service providers in the US. He also led the
company strategy and participation into Open Compute Project (OCP) as a Platinum member and as an original member of Facebook’s Telcom Infra Project (TIP). He has held
previous technology and engineering leadership positions with Ericsson, Zayo and Level 3.

On September 27, 2016, the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Lynn Martin as Chief Operating Officer. As COO, Mr. Martin will be responsible for the prioritization and alignment of
company initiatives overseeing, developing, and setting the strategic direction for the day-to-day operations of FTE Networks and ensuring operational excellence across the company.
Prior to joining FTE, Mr Martin was head of the communications, software, and technology division of Nexius where he was responsible for growing the business by delivering end-
to-end network solutions for emerging technologies, such as Open Source/NFV/SDN and infrastructure services that provided relevant value to customers and helped them to optimize
their businesses. In addition to leading the software and technology teams, he created several new business offerings in Engineering, Fiber and Open Source development where he
joined efforts with Open Compute Project and Telecom Infra Project communities both founded by Facebook to provide new network architectures and solutions with greater simplicity
and efficiency. Before Nexius, Mr. Martin served as Executive Director of Telcordia Technologies, where he ran the company’s next generation software product line, was a senior
strategist in Accenture’s Network Practice, and spent over a decade at Level 3 Communications as VP of Operational Integration and Process Management.
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On December 7, 2016, a Strategic Advisory Board was created to provide senior counsel to the company on opportunities to evolve and advance the deployment of its disruptive multi-
edge computing services. External members of FTE Networks’ Multi-Edge Computing Strategic Advisory Board are:

John Morgan. Mr. Morgan is currently working with operators to improve network coverage and capacity to make the world more open and connected. Morgan has over twenty-five
years in the Communications and IT Industries and is currently supporting operators with the adoption of open source hardware and software in their networks through the Open
Compute Project (OCP) and Telecom Infrastructure Project (TIP) initiatives. Prior to his current work, Morgan was global technical lead for legacy network migrations at Accenture
where he worked with operators on product rationalization and simplification, copper to fiber migration platform implementations, and decommissioning strategies for copper and
central office equipment. Prior to Accenture, he held executive positions with several software start-up firms in the communications industry, as well as with leading operators, such as
Verizon, Level 3 Communications, and Genuity. His background includes work in network planning and engineering, product management, OSS/BSS development, finance, and
operations. He completed his undergraduate work in Accounting at the College of William and Mary and received his MS in Information and Telecommunications Systems from the
Johns Hopkins University.

David Kalinske. Mr. Kalinske is the Chief of Staff for A3 by Airbus Group and former Aide to two U.S. Presidents, President George W. Bush and President Barack Obama. In his

previous role, he was the recipient of the Defense Superior Service Medal for superior meritorious service in the position of significant national responsibility as Aide to the President
of the United States. He also served as a research engineering leader with Lockheed Martin Aeronautics supporting Advanced Development programs, also known as The Skunk
Works, and founded Global Hybrid Company, an airborne logistics provider utilizing the revolutionary Hybrid Airship. A TOPGUN graduate and a Marine Corps fighter squadron

Commanding Officer (CO), he was selected via scholarship into the Harvard University, Kennedy School of Government, National Security Fellow program with a focus in the study
of cybersecurity policy.

Eric Salzman. Mr. Salzman has 20 years of experience working with communications and software companies with a focus on driving operational and financial excellence. He is
currently a Senior Managing Director at Monarch Capital Group, LLC, a boutique investment bank and money management firm and serves as an independent director on several
public and private technology company boards including 8x8, Inc., ASG Technologies, Sorenson Communications and FragranceNet.com. Prior to 2011, Mr. Salzman spent eight years
at Lehman Brothers as a Managing Director in the Private Equity and Principal Investing Group, as well as a Managing Director in the Global Trading Strategies Division, including
three years managing the operational and financial restructuring of dozens of companies within the Lehman Bankruptcy. Prior to Lehman Brothers, Mr. Salzman was a senior
investment professional focused on the technology and communications industry at a multi-strategy hedge fund and at two growth-oriented private equity funds. Mr. Salzman began
his career in the M&A Group at CS First Boston. Mr. Salzman graduated with a B.A. Honors from the University of Michigan and received his MBA from Harvard University.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES INDUSTRY

FTE Network Services provides comprehensive telecommunications solutions to Fortune 500 and other customers in the wireline and wireless telecommunications industry. Services
performed by FTE include the design, engineering, installation, repair and maintenance of fiber optic, copper and coaxial cable networks used for video, data and voice transmission.
In the wireless space, FTE provides engineering, design, installation and upgrade of wireless communications networks, including infrastructure, antennas, switching systems, and
backhaul links from wireless systems to voice, data and video networks. FTE also provides emergency restoration services, including the repair of telecommunications infrastructure
damaged by inclement weather. We also provide premise wiring where we install, repair, and maintain the telecommunications structure within improved structures.

FTE Network Services’ success in these technology spaces is the result of experienced management and leadership, purchasing relationships and logistics, project planning, project
management disciplines, training, quality control and top down commitment to customer satisfaction.

We believe that certain provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“ARRA”) will continue to create additional demand for our services. Specifically, the
ARRA includes federal stimulus funding for the deployment of broadband services to underserved areas that lack sufficient bandwidth to adequately support economic development.
We also expect many customers who received stimulus funds to continue to expand their networks even though stimulus funding may no longer be available.

The combination of a growing North American wireless subscriber base, greater use of wireless data for consumer and enterprise applications and services, and the development of
innovative consumer wireless data products has led to a significant increase in the amount of wireless data traffic on wireless networks. As a result, the traditional backhaul
infrastructure that has historically linked wireless cell sites to broader voice, data and video networks is reaching capacity. To handle current and future wireless data traffic demands
and to improve wireless network quality and reliability, wireless carriers are implementing plans to replace their legacy backhaul networks based on T-1 lines and circuit switching
applications with fiber optic networks, typically referred to as “fiber to the cell site” initiatives. We believe these initiatives will continue several more years before the backhaul
system upgrade is completed, resulting in additional opportunities to assist our wireless customers in their fiber to the cell site initiatives.
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We anticipate increased long-term opportunities arising from plans by a number of wireless companies to deploy and implement 4G and LTE (Long Term Evolution) and XLTE
(Extended Long Term Evolution) technology and networks throughout North America. These technologies are being deployed in the United States using a new spectrum, which
effectively requires an entirely new network to be built. As a result, we expect significant capital expenditures will be made over a relatively long period of time as wireless carriers
build out their 4G and LTE networks and then augment and optimize their networks for reliability and network quality. We believe wireless carriers are in the very early stages of their
4G and LTE network deployment plans.

Fiber to the X (“FTTX”) comprises the many variants of fiber optic access infrastructure. These include fiber to the home (“FTTH”), fiber to the premise (“FTTP”), fiber to the
building (“FTTB”), fiber to the node (“FTTN”), and fiber to the curb or cabinet (“FTTC”). GIA announces the release of a comprehensive global report on Fiber Optic Components
market. Global market for Fiber Optic Components is projected to reach US$42 billion by the year 2017. Growth will be driven by the continuously growing demand for bandwidth
and the ensuing need for fiber-based broadband, robust growth in mobile internet, and stronger FTTx related deployments.

Outside Plant Operations

Outside Plant Operations (OSP) includes all forms and methods of connecting the nation’s telecommunications infrastructure. Historically this work has been with copper and then
coax. Today, it is predominately aerial and buried fiber. FTE builds outside plant for large corporate customers, government entities and private investors.

FTE Network Services has scaled to approximately 200+ concurrent crews in multiple geographies representing multiple customers and multiple projects. FTE Network Services’
success is based on several factors:

e Staff construction experience in these markets over many years in the past provides an understanding of the challenges in most every market with respect to local regulations to
diverse soil types and rock formations.

e FTE has a network of seasoned Project Managers and Construction Managers that it leverages in all markets on all projects.

e FTE uses a blend of self-perform and sub-contract that maintains internal quality standards and allows the company to expand operation rapidly and likewise downsize at
completion preserving company profitability.

e FTE creates a local presence for all projects with local office and warehouse space to run and manage the project and handle materials logistics respectively.
e FTE has relationships with major national suppliers for everything from heavy equipment to custom order fiber optic cable.
e  All contract outside plant operations are fulfilled with a combination of our fleet of aerial trucks, underground plows, directional drills, fiber placement crews, and fiber splicers.

e Allequipment used on OSP projects is mobile, with dedicated logistics to service these projects as demands change. FTE Network Services can meet any scheduling
requirement and accommodate changing demands by calling on its extensive network of strategic partners.

e Finally, FTE itself has a broad base of experienced operators and installers dedicated to each project, and we are committed to providing the necessary personnel and equipment
to meet the demands of every engagement.

Inside Plant Operations

Inside Plant Operations (ISP) are services provided to major telecommunications services providers in their switching and processing facilities. The scope of services includes the
following:

e (Cable rack / wiring build-outs

e Infrastructure build-outs

e DC power installation

e Battery installation / maintenance

e  Uninterrupted power source (“UPS”) installation

e Power distribution unit (“PDU”) installation

e Fiber cable splicing

e Structured cable installation

e All low-voltage cable installation

e Provisioning, test, turn-up of FTTP, FTTN, FTTH, FTTx.

e Security camera installation

e AC circuits & conduit builds
Each major telecommunications client has their own build and quality standards. FTE trains its technicians in each specific protocol and has quality standards that it maintains on each
and every project. FTE has the capability to engineer, build, turn up, test and manage every component in a client’s facility. The facilities that we work in performing ISP work are
secure, highly available and mission critical to the countries telecommunications infrastructure. The client facilities that FTE works inside of touches everything from Wall Street
trading floors to the video, telephone and data services used every day by the typical family and individual. This critical infrastructure connects corporate land based services, mobile

data services, on-demand video, TV and cable broadcast, internet, public networks, private networks and telephone. The quality of the work product from engineering to construction
in this work is critical.




Our clients engage us with confidence as is shown by our solid, standing relationships and repeat business opportunities that have been tested and forged over time.

Project Estimating and Feasibility Studies

Our subsidiaries share an estimating department that provides all cost needs, both internal and external, as a value-added service to telecommunications clients. For extremely difficult
builds, we use a “boots on the ground” approach, ready with someone to look at the project up close, typically within 24 hours. For the bid process, the following steps are followed:

A request for a proposal, or a request for information is received from a prospective customer: typically a data file is provided with a general route, cell tower locations, laterals,
rings, etc.

Using Google Earth, we provide a solution based on aerial and underground construction options, utilizing the U.S. geological studies for ground conditions and “street view”
programs to analyze the conditions. Additional services are often used, including: MS Streets & Trips, Maplnfo, Bing Maps, Delorme, and a national database of GIS maps. At
the same time, we reach out to vendors and suppliers to start assessing rough costs for materials and labor.

We specialize in complex projects with a large geographical footprint and multiple customer drop points. This goal is met by importing the customer drop points (i.e., latitude
and longitude) into whichever software program the customer has specified as the deliverable. Then, using the aforementioned methods, we identify the best installation path
and verify whether the most cost-effective method of installation will be aerial, underground, or existing conduit paths. This conclusion is portrayed on the deliverable software,
and the different methods of construction are clearly defined by specific colors on the reports.

The project is broken into segments with independent budgets for each segment, allowing the customer to identify the fiber size based upon end-use requirements. This all flows
into a master project budget, giving the customer a snapshot that will allow them to make changes to the individual segments at their discretion based upon the budgetary

information provided.
e The nationwide network of project managers is utilized to analyze the geography of each part of the project and provide feedback on critical portions of the proposed build.

e This all culminates into finished proposals - ones that we believe accurately represent the ideal and most cost-effective approach to the build process. Due to the process, we
have solidified in our estimating department, bringing in and training additional support staff typically takes less than 2 weeks.

Customer Relationships

Our current customers include, in part, multiple Fortune 500 telecommunications and technology providers and integrators. We also provide telecommunications engineering,
construction, installation and maintenance services to a number of cable television multiple system operators. Premise wiring services are provided to various corporations and state
and local governments.

Our customer base is concentrated. Due to the fact that the majority of our revenues are non-recurring, project-based revenues, it is not unusual for there to be significant period-to-
period shifts in customer concentrations. Revenue may significantly decline if the Company were to lose one or more of its significant customers, or if the Company were not able to
obtain new customers upon the completion of significant contract. The Company’s strategy for the future includes customer and service diversification reducing the customer revenue
concentration to less than 15% for any single customer.

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the Company’s largest customers included a telecommunications company providing fiber optic based network solutions, (Customer C), and a
corporate staffing customer within the Company’s staffing segment, (Customer D). During the transitional three months ended December 31, 2015, the Company’s largest customers
included a multinational provider of communications technology and services, (Customer I) and a corporate staffing customer within the Company’s staffing segment, (Customer D).
For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company’s largest customers included multinational telecommunications conglomerate (Customer M) and leader service provider in
network managed and professional services, (Customer J).




The following tables set forth our revenues and accounts receivable balances for the periods indicated:

For the Transitional

For the Year Ended Three Months Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015
Revenues $ % $ % $ %
Customer C 164,987 1% 41,664 1% 5,196,380 36 %
Customer D - % 1,592,193 52% 5,324,866 37 %
Customer I 91,000 1% 316,931 11% 106,850 1%
Customer J 1,804,760 14% - - - -
Customer M 6,332,966 52% 130,771 4% 552,054 4%
All other customers 3,875,366 32% 989,246 32% 3,208,532 22%
Total Revenues, net of discounts $ 12,269,079 100%  $ 3,070,805 100%  $14,388,682 100%
For the Transitional
For the Year Ended Three Months Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015
Accounts Receivable $ % $ % $ %
Customer B 85,112 1% 152,475 10% 152,475 12%
Customer E 603,663 9% 718,035 47% 617,825 47%
Customer H 102,796 2% 215,609 14% 50,767 4%
Customer M 4,624,600 66% 62,233 4% 66,832 5%
All other customers 1,722,354 22% 387,128 25% 416,546 32%
Total Receivables 7,138,525 100% $ 1,535,480 100% § 1,304,445 100%
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (118,949) $  (89,000) $  (89,000)
Accounts Receivable, net of allowance 7,019,576 $ 1,446,480 $ 1,215,445
Competition

The markets in which we operate are highly competitive. We compete with other contractors in most of the geographic markets in which we operate, and several of our competitors are
large companies that have significant financial, technical and marketing resources. In addition, there are relatively few barriers to entry into some of the industries in which we operate
and, as a result, any organization that has adequate financial resources and access to technical expertise may become a competitor. A significant portion of our revenues is currently
derived from unit price or fixed price agreements, and price is often an important factor in the award of such agreements. Accordingly, we could be underbid by our competitors in an
effort by them to procure such business. Economic conditions have increased the impacts of competitive pricing in certain of the markets that we serve. We believe that customers
consider other factors in choosing a service provider, including technical expertise and experience, financial and operational resources, nationwide presence, industry reputation and
dependability, which we expect to benefit larger contractors such as us. In addition, competition may lessen as industry resources, such as labor supplies, approach capacity. There can
be no assurance, however, that our competitors will not develop the expertise, experience and resources to provide services that are superior in both price and quality to our services, or
that we will be able to maintain or enhance our competitive position. We also face competition from the in-house service organizations of our existing or prospective customers,
including telecommunications and engineering companies, which employ personnel who perform some of the same types of services as those provided by us. Although a significant
portion of these services is currently outsourced by many of our customers, there can be no assurance that our existing or prospective customers will continue to outsource services in
the future.

Regulation
Our operations are subject to various federal, state, local and international laws and regulations including:
e licensing, permitting and inspection requirements applicable to contractors, electricians and engineers;
e regulations relating to worker safety and environmental protection;
e permitting and inspection requirements applicable to construction projects;
e wage and hour regulations;
e regulations relating to transportation of equipment and materials, including licensing and permitting requirements; and

e building and electrical codes.




We believe that we have all the licenses required to conduct our operations and that we are in substantial compliance with applicable regulatory requirements. Our failure to comply
with applicable regulations could result in substantial fines or revocation of our operating licenses, as well as give rise to termination or cancellation rights under our contracts or
disqualify us from future bidding opportunities.

Safety and Risk Management

We are committed to ensuring that our employees perform their work safely and we regularly communicate with our employees to reinforce that commitment and instill safe work
habits. We review accidents and claims for our operations, examine trends and implement changes in procedures to address safety issues. Claims arising in our business generally
include workers’ compensation claims, various general liability and damage claims, and claims related to vehicle accidents, including personal injury and property damage. We insure
against the risk of loss arising from our operations up to certain deductible limits in substantially all of the states in which we operate. In addition, we retain risk of loss, up to certain
limits, under our employee group health plan.

We carefully monitor claims and actively participate with our insurers in determining claims estimates and adjustments. The estimated costs of claims are accrued as liabilities,
including estimates for claims incurred but not reported. Due to fluctuations in our loss experience from year to year, insurance accruals have varied and can affect the consistency of
operating margins. If we experience insurance claims in excess of our umbrella coverage limit, our business could be materially and adversely affected.

Seasonality

Our revenues are affected by seasonality as a significant portion of the work we perform is outdoors. Consequently, our operations are impacted by extended periods of inclement
weather. Generally, inclement weather is more likely to occur during the winter season, which falls during our first and fourth fiscal quarters. Also, a disproportionate percentage of
total paid holidays fall within our fourth quarter, which decreases the number of available workdays. Additionally, our customer premise equipment installation activities for cable
providers historically decrease around calendar year-end holidays as their customers generally require less activity during this period. As a result, we may experience reduced revenue
in the first or fourth quarters of our fiscal years.

Environmental Matters

A significant portion of our work is performed underground. As a result, we are potentially subject to material liabilities related to encountering underground objects which may cause
the release of hazardous materials or substances. Additionally, the environmental laws and regulations which relate to our business include those regarding the removal and remediation
of hazardous substances and waste. These laws and regulations can impose significant fines and criminal sanctions for violations. Costs associated with the discharge of hazardous
materials or substances may include clean-up costs and related damages or liabilities. These costs could be significant and could adversely affect our results of operations and cash
flows.

STAFFING INDUSTRY

Effective May 8, 2014, we began operations for a temporary and permanent staffing agency providing full service human capital solutions specializing in telecommunications,
construction, engineering and technology through our wholly owned subsidiary, FVP Worx. On December 31, 2016, a strategic decision was made to continue operating the staffing
segment but at a reduced scale of operations in order to fully deploy our management’s focus and working capital to our higher margin business in the OSP and ISP segments.

Segment Reporting

We operate in the telecommunications infrastructure services industry and, effective May 8, 2014, entered the staffing industry. For the year ended December 31, 2016, our staffing
business generated $108,057 in revenues and $126,087 in expenses. For reporting purposes, the Company will continue to report the staff business as a separate segment from the
telecommunications services business. We reported segment results pursuant to ASC 280-10 “Segment Reporting” for the year ended December 31, 2016, transitional three months
ended December 31, 2015, and the year ended September 30, 2015.

EMPLOYEES

As of May 1, 2017, we, together with our subsidiaries, employ 136 full-time employees and 1 part-time employee. None of our employees are represented by local collective
bargaining units. The number of our employees varies according to the level of our work in progress. We maintain a nucleus of technical and managerial personnel to supervise all
projects and add employees as needed to complete specific projects.

ACQUISITION STRATEGY

With respect to our acquisition strategy, FTE intends to pursue a clearly defined telecommunications niche, but may, in its discretion, pursue acquisitions outside of this niche, although
this will not be our focus. We selectively pursue acquisitions when we believe doing so is operationally and financially beneficial to our existing operations, although we do not rely
solely on acquisitions for growth. In particular, we may pursue those acquisitions that we believe will provide us with incremental revenue and geographic diversification while
complementing our existing operations. We generally target companies for acquisition that have defensible leadership positions in their market niches, are EBITDA positive, which
meet or exceed industry averages, and have proven operating histories, sound management, and certain clearly identifiable cost synergies. On October 28, 2016, the Company signed a
non-binding letter of intent (the “LOI”) with Benchmark Builders, Inc. (“Benchmark”) which summarized the principal terms of a possible acquisition of Benchmark, a privately held
corporation. On March 9, 2017, the Company, entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with (i) Benchmark, and (ii) each of Benchmark’s stockholders.

On April 20, 2017, the Company closed on the Purchase Agreement, acquiring 100% of the outstanding shares of Benchmark stock. On April 20, 2017, in conjunction with the
acquisition of Benchmark Builders Inc, Lateral amended the original credit agreement to provide for approximately $10.1 million towards the cash purchase price of the Benchmark
acquisition, refinancing this new advance with the existing debt, extending the maturity date of the facility to March 31, 2019. See Item 8.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.
As a “smaller reporting company” as defined by Item 10 of Regulation S-K, we are not required to provide information required by this Item
ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.




ITEM 2. Properties.

On December 1, 2015, our executive offices were relocated to 999 Vanderbilt Beach Road, Suite 601, Naples, Florida, 34108 and our telephone number is (877) 878-8136. The old
Naples, FL office lease expired on October 31, 2015. Our current lease expires November 30, 2022 and the square footage increase from 3,310 square feet to 5,377 square feet. Our
subsidiaries lease five additional office/warehouse facilities throughout the United States, which is summarized below.

Monthly
Location: Usage Square Footage Lease Start Date  Lease End Date Obligation
Naples, FL Office 5,377 11/01/2015 11/30/2022 $ 19,034
Indianapolis, IN Office 4,000 01/01/2016 12/31/2018 $ 2,700
Dallas, TX Office 3,000 12/01/2016 11/30/2019 $ 4,000
Des Moines, IA Office 5,000 03/01/2016 02/28/2018 $ 2.000
Naples, FL Warehouse 4,500 11/01/2015 10/31/2018 $ 4,770
Dallas, TX Office 8,640 5/1/2016 4/30/2019 $ 4,500

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are involved in litigation claims arising in the ordinary course of business from time to time, and as of December 31, 2016 we have no material litigation matters. See Footnote 10
Commitment and Contingencies, Accrued Litigation Expense.

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

None.




PART II
ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Our shares were quoted on the OTC Pink Sheets, under the symbol “BEAC” through March 17, 2014 and under the symbol “FTNW?” thereafter, until August 20, 2014, when the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) suspended trading of our securities, because we failed to comply with certain reporting requirements outlined in the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Subsequently, the SEC issued an Order that the registration of each class of the Company’s securities registered pursuant to Exchange Act Section 12 be
revoked pursuant to Section 12(j) of the Exchange Act, effective September 12, 2014. Subsequent to the foregoing, our common stock was not listed, traded or quoted on any national
stock exchange or on the OTC Markets.

On May 16, 2015, our registration statement on Form 10 became effective and on December 10, 2015, our common stock resumed trading on the OTC Pink marketplace. On March 1,
2016, we uplisted to the OTCQB marketplace, and on June 29, 2016, we uplisted to the OTCQX marketplace.

The following table sets for the range of high and low bid information for our common stock for the periods indicated. Such over-the-counter market quotations reflect inter-dealer
prices without retail mark-up, mark-down or commissions and may not necessarily represent actual transactions. Note that our common stock did not trade during fiscal 2015.

Price Range

Low High
Year ended September 30, 2015
First quarter (October 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014) $ NA § N.A
Second quarter (January 1, 2015, to March 31, 2015) $ NA $ N.A
Third quarter (April 1, 2015 to June 30, 2015) $ NA § N.A
Fourth quarter (July 1, 2015 to September 30, 2015) $ NA $ N.A
For the transitional three months Ended December 31, 2015
Fourth Quarter (October 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015) $ 0.201 § 2.001
Year ended December 31, 2016
First quarter (January 1 to March 31, 2016) $ 0.401 § 1.591
Second quarter (April 1 to June 30, 2016) $ 0.621 § 0.88
Third quarter (July 1 to September 30, 2016) $ 040 § 0.84
Fourth quarter (October 1 to December 31, 2016) $ 032 § 0.58

! Price adjust to reflect 1:20 reverse split of common shares effective May 26, 2016.

Stockholders

There were 440 holders of record of our common stock as of May 11, 2017.

Dividends

We have not declared or paid any dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We plan to retain any future earnings for use
in our business operations. Any decisions as to future payments of cash dividends will depend on our earnings and financial position and such other factors as the Board deems

relevant.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
During the transitional three month period ended December 31, 2015, the Company issued the following:
On October 2, 2015, the Company received $145,000 from its investor from the stock subscription receivable.

On November 2, 2015, the Company issued 163,441 shares of its Series D preferred stock with a grant date value of $126,840, under the terms of the Company’s new senior credit
facility.

On November 2, 2015, the Company issued 391,903 shares of its Series F preferred stock with a grant date value of $310,540, under the terms of the Company’s new senior credit
facility.

On November 5, 2015, the Company issued 26,996 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $139,701 as a settlement with one of the Company’s vendors.
On December 4, 2015, the Company issued 25,641 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $5,120 as part of a legal settlement agreement.
On December 18, 2015, the Company issued 6,250 shares of its Series F preferred stock with a grant date value of $25,000 in settlement for investor relations services.

On December 21, 2015, the Company issued 519,309 shares of its Series F preferred stock with a grant date value of $342,743 to various employees under the terms of their
employment agreements.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 the Company issued the following:

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 285,664 shares of its Preferred Series F stock with a grant date value of $35,186 to one of its investors as an
incentive to continue raising equity proceeds.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 231,041 shares of its Preferred Series F stock to its independent directors and two officers with a grant date
value of $152,487 for compensation.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 the Company issued 5,029,000 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $2,569,800 to several employees under the terms
of their employment agreements, of which $2,305,040 remains unvested.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 3,809,389 shares of its common stock to settle debt with a grant date value of $1,798,438.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 841,500 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $445,800 to consultants for services performed
for the Company.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 7,594,999 shares of its common stock to individual investors for an equity raise totaling $2,628,000.

The Series D and Series F preferred shares issued as described above were not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) in reliance upon the
exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of that Act and Regulation D promulgated thereunder, which exempts transactions by an issuer not involving any public offering.
These securities may not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements. Certificates representing these
securities contain a legend stating the same.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

During the year ended December 31, 2016, there were no purchases of our equity by us or any “affiliated purchaser”.

ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data.

FTE Networks, Inc. is a “smaller reporting company” as defined by Regulation S-K and as such, is not required to provide the information contained in this item pursuant to
Regulation S-K.
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ITEM 7. Manag t’s Di ion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Overview

FTE Networks, Inc. (FTNW), and its wholly owned subsidiaries, is a leading international networking infrastructure service solutions company. The Company designs, build, and
support telecommunications and technology systems and infrastructure services for Fortune 500 companies operating telecommunications services in Data Center Infrastructure, Fiber
Optics, Wireless Integration, and Surveillance & Security. FTE Networks is headquartered in Naples, Florida, with offices throughout the United States and Europe.

® Jus-Com, Inc., (dba FTE Network Services) specializes in the design, engineering, installation, and maintenance of all forms of telecommunications infrastructure. Services include
engineering consulting, design, installation, maintenance, and emergency response in various categories including cabling, equipment installation and configuration, rack and stack,
wiring build-outs, infrastructure build-outs, DC power installation, OSP/ISP fiber placement, fiber cable splicing and testing.

o FTE Wireless, LLC, offers wireless solutions to major wireless carriers including equipment installation, fiber backhaul, antennae installation and testing, small cell solutions, fiber-
to-site and other turnkey solutions as needed by such clients.

e Focus Venture Partners, Inc. (dba FVP Worx) is a multifaceted employment firm offering full service staffing solutions, specializing in the telecommunications, technology and
construction services industries.

FTE Network Services and FTE Wireless Service, LLC are reported in the Company’s telecommunications segment. FVP Worx represents the Company’s staffing segment.
Recent Business Developments

On November 3, 2015, the Company entered into a credit agreement, dated October 28, 2015 (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company received $8 million in term loans
from Lateral Investment Management (“Lateral”). A portion of the proceeds was used to extinguish an aggregate principal amount of approximately $3.4 million of Senior Secured
Promissory Notes, pursuant to a tender offer. The noteholders who tendered their notes received the tender offer consideration of $0.50 per $1 principal amount of the Notes from the
proceeds from the term loan, and all interest payable on the notes was forgiven. The Company expects to recognize approximately a $3.4 million gain related to the extinguishment of
the Senior Secured Promissory Notes. In connection with the agreement, the Company issued 555,344 shares of preferred stock to Lateral, 163,441 designated as Series D preferred
stock and 391,903 designated as Series F preferred stock. Upon the approval of the reverse split of common stock May 26, 2016, these preferred shares mandatorily converted to
11,106,880 shares of common stock, based upon their 1 for 20 conversion rate. The Company and Lateral also entered into a Registration Rights agreement in connection with the
issuance of these shares, pursuant to which the Company must file a registration statement with the SEC, with respect to the shares. Lateral may request redemption of some or all of
its shares any time after October 28, 2017, subject to the Company (a) meeting certain minimum capitalization and EBITDA requirements; and (b) being able to continue as a going
concern on a post-redemption basis. The redemption price per share is variable and equals 10 (ten) times the last twelve months EBITDA, multiplied by the Lateral fully-diluted
ownership percentage and then divided by the Lateral shares outstanding. In addition, Lateral was granted anti-dilution rights which permit it to receive additional equity securities to
maintain its fully-diluted ownership interest to the extent that the Company issues equity securities to third parties, up to a maximum of $5,000,000. On April 5, 2016, the Company
entered into an amendment agreement to its existing credit facility with Lateral, amending the original credit agreement signed October 28, 2015. The agreement amends select
provisions of the original credit agreement, including equity raises and changes to certain financial and operational covenants. On September 30, 2016, the Company entered into a
second amendment agreement to its existing credit facility, maturing October 28, 2017, amending the original credit agreement signed October 28, 2015. The agreement was amended
solely to consolidate a series of short term bridge loans granted to the company from time to time during the second and third quarter of 2016 into a $2.5 million loan, which matures
on April 30, 2017. The second amendment also amended the covenants related to consolidated EBITDA, consolidated leverage, consolidated debt service, selling, general, and
administrative expenses, and compensation expense. On April 20, 2017, in conjunction with the acquisition of Benchmark Builders Inc, Lateral amended the original credit agreement
to provide for approximately $10.1 million towards the cash purchase price of the Benchmark acquisition, refinancing this new advance with the existing debt, extending the maturity
date of the facility to March 31, 2019.

On December 23, 2015, the Board unanimously authorized and approved an amendment to our Articles of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split of our Common Stock at a 1-for-
20 ratio (the “Reverse Split”). On December 30, 2015, stockholders holding a majority of our voting power approved by written consent the amendment to our Articles of
Incorporation, which would affect the Reverse Split. The Reverse Split will reduce the number of outstanding shares of our Common Stock by reclassifying and converting all
outstanding shares of our Common Stock into a proportionately fewer number of shares of Common Stock. On March 9, 2016, the Company filed a Form Pre-14C with the SEC
concerning the 1 for 20 reverse stock split and the increase of the authorized shares of common stock from 70,000,000 to 200,000,000. On April 18, 2016, the Company filed its
Definitive Form 14-C with the SEC. On May 25, 2016 “FINRA” approved the Reverse Split, which was effectuated on May 26, 2016. All share and share information in this
transitional report has been retroactively restated for the reverse split.

Effective January 27, 2016, the Company changed its fiscal year end from September 30 to December 31 and filed an unaudited transitional report on Form 10-QT to cover the period
from October 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015 with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 11, 2016. This current annual report as of December 31, 2016 includes the audited

three month transitional period ended December 31, 2015.

16




On October 28, 2016, the Company signed a non-binding letter of intent (the “LOI”’) with Benchmark Builders, Inc. (“Benchmark”) which summarized the principal terms of a
possible acquisition of Benchmark, a privately held corporation. On March 9, 2017, the Company, entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with (i)
Benchmark, and (ii) each of Benchmark’s stockholders. On April 20, 2017 (the “Closing Date™), FTE Networks, Inc. (“FTE Networks™) acquired all of the issued and outstanding
shares of common stock (the “Benchmark Shares”) of Benchmark Builders, Inc., a privately held New York corporation (“Benchmark™) from each of its stockholders (collectively, the
“Sellers”), pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2017, by and among FTE Networks, Benchmark, and the Sellers (the “Purchase Agreement”), as amended
by Amendment No. 1 to Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date (the “Purchase Agreement Amendment” and together with the Purchase Agreement, the “Amended
Purchase Agreement”). FTE Networks, Benchmark, and the Sellers, entered into the Purchase Agreement Amendment in order to address certain changes in the purchase price as set
forth in the Purchase Agreement. As described in FTE Networks’ Current Report on Form 8-K filed with filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on March 9,
2017, the Purchase Agreement provided that the consideration to the Sellers for the Benchmark Shares would consist of (i) $55,000,000 in cash consideration, (ii) an aggregate of
17,825,350 shares of the Company’s common stock, and (iii) promissory notes in the aggregate amount of $10,000,000 to the Sellers. The Purchase Agreement Amendment has, inter
alia, modified the purchase price set forth in the Purchase Agreement to consist of (i) cash consideration of approximately $17,250,000, subject to certain prospective working capital
adjustments (the “Cash Consideration”), approximately $10 million cash provided by Lateral and $7 million provided by certain of the sellers, (ii) 26,738,445 shares of FTE
Networks’ common stock (the “FTE Shares”), (iii) convertible promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $12,500,000 to certain stockholders of Benchmark (the “Series A
Notes”, which mature on April 20, 2019), (iv) promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $30,000,000 to certain stockholders of Benchmark (the “Series B Notes”, which
mature on April 20, 2020) and (v) promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $7,500,000 to certain stockholders of Benchmark (the “Series C Notes”, which mature on
October 20, 2018, and together with the Series A Notes and the Series B Notes, the “Notes”) in the Amended Purchase Agreement. Additionally, Lateral amended its existing credit
facility to provide for the approximate $10 million cash and to restructure the existing debt, which now has a maturity date of March 30, 2019. The $75 million acquisition will enable
FTE to deliver integrated network services, cutting-edge technology, and construction management services on the largest and most complex projects, from conception to completion.
Benchmark intends to immediately begin to aggressively roll-out FTE’s “compute to the edge” technology in New York City and the surrounding region. This leading edge
technology, called CrossLayer, allows building owners to provide exceptional broadband access at significant savings to both landlords and tenants, while creating revenue generating
opportunities for landlords and recurring revenue platforms for FTE. The transaction will allow FTE and Benchmark to begin offering services to each other’s clients and expanding
their offerings nationally.
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Critical Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and judgments that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. These estimates and judgments are based on
historical information, information that is currently available to us and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Our most significant estimates relate to our allowances for receivables and deferred tax assets, plus the valuation of equity issuances.

Revenue and Cost of Goods Sold Recognition

Generally, including the staffing business, revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) delivery has occurred
or services have been rendered, (3) the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable, and (4) collectability is reasonably assured.

Due to the short-term nature of our construction contracts, revenue is recognized once 100% of a contract segment is completed. A contract may have many segments, of which, once
a segment is completed; the revenue for the segment is recognized and no further obligation exists. The Network’s construction contracts or segments of contracts typically can range
from several days to two to four months. Contract costs may be billed as incurred. Contract costs include all direct material and labor costs and those indirect costs related to contract
performance, such as indirect labor, supplies, tools and repairs. Selling, general and administrative costs are charged to expense as incurred. We begin recognizing revenue on a project
as project costs are incurred and revenue recognition criteria are met.

Provisions for losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period such losses are known. Changes in job performance, job conditions and estimated profitability, including those
arising from contract penalty provisions, changes in raw materials costs, and final contract settlements may result in revisions to revenue, costs and income and are recognized in the
period in which the revisions are determined.

Valuation of Long-lived Assets

We evaluate our long-lived assets for impairment in accordance with related accounting standards. Assets to be held and used (including projects under development as well as
property and equipment), are reviewed for impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist. If an indicator of impairment exists, we first group our assets with other assets and
liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities (the “asset group”). Secondly, we estimate the
undiscounted future cash flows that are directly associated with and expected to arise from the completion, use and eventual disposition of such asset group. We estimate the
undiscounted cash flows over the remaining useful life of the primary asset within the asset group. If the undiscounted cash flows exceed the carrying value, no impairment is
indicated. If the undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the carrying value, then an impairment is measured based on fair value compared to carrying value, with fair value typically
based on a discounted cash flow model. If an asset is still under development, future cash flows include remaining construction costs. There were no impairments during the periods
presented.

Income Taxes

We record income taxes under the asset and liability method, whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on the future tax consequences attributable to temporary
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and attributable to operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Accounting standards regarding income taxes requires a reduction of the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance, if based on the available
evidence, it is more likely than not that such assets will not be realized. Accordingly, the need to establish valuation allowances for deferred tax assets is assessed at each reporting
period based on a more-likely-than-not realization threshold. This assessment considers, among other matters, the nature, frequency and severity of current and cumulative losses,
forecasts of future profitability, the duration of statutory carryforward periods, our experience with operating loss and tax credit carryforwards not expiring unused, and tax planning
alternatives.

Significant judgment is required in evaluating our tax positions and determining our provision for income taxes. During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Accounting standards regarding uncertainty in income taxes provides a two-step approach to recognizing and
measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more likely than not that
the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount which is
more than 50% likely, based solely on the technical merits, of being sustained on examinations. We consider many factors when evaluating and estimating our tax positions and tax
benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and which may not accurately anticipate actual outcomes.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) standard related to fair value measurement at inception. The standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure of fair value measurements. The standard applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value
measurements and, accordingly, does not require any new fair value measurements. The standard clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be
determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. The recorded values of long-term debt approximate their fair values, as interest
approximates market rates. As a basis for considering such assumptions, the standard established a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair
value as follows:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.

The Company’s financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and notes payable. The recorded values of accounts
receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses approximate fair values due to the short maturities of such instruments. Recorded values for notes payable and
related liabilities approximate fair values, since their amortization of deferred financing cost stated or imputed interest rates are commensurate with prevailing market rates for similar
obligations.

Segment Reporting

We operate in the telecommunications infrastructure services industry and, effective May 8, 2014, entered the staffing industry. The following table summarizes financial information
regarding our business segments during the year ended September 30, 2015, the transitional three months ended December 31, 2015 and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016.

For the Year Ended September 30, 2015

Telecommunications Staffing Consolidated
Revenues, net of discounts $ 8,722,147 $ 5,666,535 $ 14,388,682
Income (Loss) from Operations $ (1,657,238) $ 50,417 $ (1,606,821)
Depreciation and Amortization $ 108,324 $ - $ 108,324
Interest Expense $ 1,281,445 $ 26,631 $ 1,308,076

For the Transitional Three Months Ended December 31, 2015

Telecommunications Staffing Consolidated
Revenues, net of discounts $ 1,185,670 1,885,135 3,070,805
Income (Loss) from Operations $ (2,483,328) 186,842 (2,296,486)
Depreciation and Amortization $ 169,574 - 169,574
Interest Expense $ 431,153 4,310 435,463




For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Telecommunications Staffing Consolidated
Revenues, net of discounts $ 12,161,022 108,057 12,269,079
Income (Loss) from Operations $ (2,459,910) 58,389 (2,401,521)
Depreciation and Amortization $ 1,241,231 - 1,241,231
Interest Expense $ 2,251,151 21,122 2,272,273

Discussion of Operating Results, Years Ended December 31, 2016 and September 30, 2015 and the Three Months Ended December 31, 2015
Overview

We reported a consolidated net loss attributable to common shareholders of $6,313,995 for the year ended December 31, 2016, as compared to net loss attributable to common
shareholders of $3,634,475 for the year ended September 30, 2015, reflecting an increase in net loss of $2,679,520. This increase in net loss was attributable to an increase in interest
expense, amortization expense, the loss on the warrant valuation, non recurring transaction fee, and non recurring acquisition costs related to Benchmark, which was partially offset by
a non recurring gain on a legal settlement.

Revenues and Gross Profit

We had overall revenues of $12,269,079 for the year ended December 31, 2016, as compared to revenues of $14,388,682 for the year ended September 30, 2015, resulting in a
decrease of $2,119,603, or 15%. Our gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2016 and September 30, 2015 was $3,420,825 and $3,316,602, respectively, representing an increase
of $104,223 or 3%. This increase is directly attributable to the shift in revenue mix and the Company’s restructuring of recognition factors as a result of the acquisition. For the year
ended December 31, 2016, we recognized $12,161,022 in telecommunications revenue as compared to $8,722,147 for the year ended September 30, 2015, an increase of $3,438,875 or
39%. Conversely, as management made a business decision to drastically reduce staffing revenue to increase margin and utilize capital towards growing telecommunications revenue,
staffing revenue decreased $5,558,478 or 98%, to $108,057 from $5,666,535 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and September 30, 2015, respectively. This revenue shift allowed
gross margins to increase 27% for the year ended December 31, 2016, from 23% for the year ended September 30, 2015, with the same increase in gross margin when comparing the
year ended December 31, 2016 to the three months ended December 31, 2015. As of December 31, 2016, our current telecommunications backlog stood at $45.5 million, compared to
$26.3 million as of December 31, 2015.

Operating Expenses

We reported operating expenses of $5,822,346 and $4,923,423 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and September 30, 2015, respectively, reflecting an increase of $898,923 or
18%. The increase in operating expenses was primarily due to non recurring acquisition costs related to the Benchmark transaction of $483,533, and an increase in depreciation
expense of $407,742, $516,066 for the year ended December 31, 2016 as compared to $108,324 for the year ended September 30, 2015. Additionally, occupancy costs increased
$543,601, from $744,766 for the year ended December 31, 2016 as compared to $201,165 for the year ended September 30, 2015. The primary increase in occupancy expense was the
relocation of the Naples corporate office in December 2015 to a larger office space. These increases were partially offset by a one time legal accrual reserve reversal of $1,335,771 as a
result of a legal settlement. Our headcount for December 31, 2016 was 134 full time and one part time employee. The Company believes that it may hire up to four support staff to
support the Benchmark acquisition, and will add one more management level sales professional to its sales staff, dependent upon financial and budgetary limits, which would bring our
headcount up to 139 full time employees and one part time employee. The new employees will all be located at the Corporate Office in Naples, FL.

Operating Loss

The operating loss increased by 794,700 or 49%, from a loss of $1,606,821 for the year ended September 30, 2015 to a loss of $2,401,521 for the year ended December 31, 2016. The
change in operating loss is principally related to the shift in revenue mix and gross margins as described above and the changes in operating expenses.

Other (Expense) Income

Other expense was $3,832,913 for the year ended December 31, 2016, as compared to other expense of $1,948,093 for the year ended September 30, 2015. The unfavorable variance
is partly due to an increase of $725,165 in amortization expense of the original issue discount on our senior note, from $0 for the year ended September 30, 2015 to $725,166 for the
year ended December 31, 2016. Interest expense increased $964,197 from $1,308,076 for the year ended September 30, 2015 to $2,272,273 for the year ended December 31, 2016.
The increase in amortization expense and interest expense is primarily due to the new senior credit facility. Additionally, the loss of the fair value on warrants increased $64,800, from
$0 for the year ended September 30, 2015, $0 for the transitional three months ended December 31, 2015, to $64,800 for the year ended December 31, 2016

Discussion of Operating Results for the Three Months ended December 31, 2015 (audited) and December 31, 2014 (unaudited)
Overview

We reported consolidated net income attributable to common shareholders of $526,280 and $199,764 during the three months ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively,
reflecting an increase in net income of $326,516, primarily resulting from a gain in the extinguishment of our senior debt and related accrued interest.

Revenues and Gross Profit

We had overall revenues of $3,070,805 for the three months ended December 31, 2015, as compared to revenues of $2,944,035 for the three months ended December 31, 2014,
resulting in an increase of $126,770 or 4%. The revenues related to our staffing segment of approximately $1,885,000 during the three months ended December 31, 2015 partially
offset the reduced revenue streams from the telecommunications segment. Due to the fact that the majority of our telecommunications revenues are non-recurring, project-based
revenues, it is not unusual for there to be significant period-to-period shifts in revenues and customer concentrations. Revenues generated by the staffing segment were negligible
during the three months ended December 31, 2014, since the staffing segment was in the development stage during this period.

The $722,850 or 59% decrease in gross profit to $502,947 in the current quarter from $1,225,797 in the prior year comparative quarter resulted significant cost overruns attributable to
one project, and a shift in revenue mix from the telecommunications segment to the staffing segment, which generates lower margins.

Operating Expenses

We reported operating expenses of $2,799,433 and $750,943 for the three months ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, representing an increase of $2,048,490 or 273%.
Selling, general, and administrative expenses increased $813,228 or 226%, due primarily to increased legal expenses, business insurance, stock based compensation expenses, as well
as increased selling and business development costs related to the formation of a business development team focused entirely on business development with significant activity,
resulting in new clients, new business and new markets. (See Recent Business Developments, above). Compensation expense was $1,356,288 and $293,575 for the three months ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, representing an increase of $1,062,713 or 362%. This increase is attributable primarily to an increase in salary expense and related ancillary
expenses due to the addition of key personnel for our business development team.

Operating Income
Operating income decreased by $2,771,340, from income of $474,854 for the three months ended December 31, 2014 to a loss of $2,296,486 for the three months ended December 31,
2015. This was attributable to the increase in cost of revenues attributable to one project, combined with the shift in business to our staffing segment, which generates lower margins,

and our increases in compensation and selling, general, and administrative expenses as described above.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview

As of December 31, 2016, the Company had an accumulated deficit of approximately $19.1 million and a working capital deficit of approximately $3.4 million, which includes
approximately $2.2 million of liabilities for unpaid payroll taxes and the related penalties and interest. In addition, during the year ended December 31, 2016, investing activities
provided approximately $2.2 million of cash, primarily from the restricted cash account, and cash provided from financing activities was $10.6 million. As a result, the Company
needed to regularly monitor its liquidity situation.

On October 28, 2015, we entered into an $8 million senior secured credit facility of which (a) $1.8 million was utilized to extinguish $3.5 million of senior secured debt and $1.8
million of related accrued interest; and (b) $3.0 million was deposited into a restricted Company bank account which requires the credit provider’s approval to utilize. Management’s
plans are to continue to raise additional funds through the sales of debt or equity securities, until such time that operations generate sufficient cash to sustain operations.

On April 20, 2017, in conjunction with the acquisition of Benchmark Builders Inc, Lateral amended its existing credit facility to provide for approximately $10.1 million towards the
cash purchase price, refinancing this new advance with the existing debt, extending the maturity date of the facility to March 31, 2019. Additionally, the Company, in conjunction with
the Benchmark acquisition, took on approximately $50 million dollars of debt, $12,500,000 which matures on April 20, 2019, $30,000,000 which matures on April 20, 2020, and
$7,500,000 which matures on October 20, 2018. With Benchmark’s 2016 annual revenues of $386 million with adjusted EBITDA of $40.4 million and a backlog as of December 31,
2016 of $259 million, combined with the Company’s backlog as of December 31, 2016 of $45.5 million, the Company believes that it has the ability to support this additional debt and
fund all current operations. If needed, there is no assurance that additional financing will be available or that management will be able to obtain and close financing on terms acceptable
to the Company, enter into an acceptable installment plan with the IRS, which is scheduled to be presented in the third quarter of 2017, or whether the Company will become
profitable and generate positive operating cash flow

There is no assurance that additional financing will be available when needed or that management will be able to obtain and close financing on terms acceptable to the Company, enter
into an acceptable installment plan with the IRS, which the Company anticipates proposing in the second quarter of 2017, or whether the Company will become more profitable and
generate sufficient positive operating cash flow. If the Company is unable to raise sufficient additional funds, it will have to develop and implement a plan to further extend payables
and reduce overhead until sufficient additional capital is raised to support further operations. There can be no assurance that such a plan will be successful.

Accounts Receivable Considerations

Accounts receivable billed to customers for construction contracts are generally billed based upon the terms of a master services agreement or similar agreement (the “MSA”), which
allows the customer to award a large construction contract, which can span a period of several years, in segments (or subprojects), with each segment representing a portion of the
project that can be started and completed within several weeks or less. The Company is able to recognize revenue upon the completion of each subsection, subject to client approval.

During 2016, the average collection period for our accounts receivable decreased, as we shortened payments terms on two customers by entering into Supplier Finance Programs
sponsored by customers whereby all approved invoices are paid within three days, with a 1% discount fee netted out of the invoice proceeds. Our allowance for uncollectible
receivables is management’s best estimate of uncollectible amounts; further, the allowance for uncollectible receivables at September 30, 2015, December 31, 2015, and December 31,
2016 were established with the benefit of hindsight and a retrospective review by management after the first quarter of the following year, and uncollectible accounts which would
have previously been reserved for were written off.
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Lateral Redemption Rights Agreement Considerations

In connection with the Lateral credit agreement, the Company issued 555,344 shares of preferred stock to Lateral, 163,441 designated as Series D preferred stock and 391,903
designated as Series F preferred stock. Upon the approval of the reverse split of common stock May 26, 2016, these preferred shares mandatorily converted to 11,106,880 shares of
common stock, based upon their 1 for 20 conversion rate. The Company and Lateral also entered into a Registration Rights agreement in connection with the issuance of these shares,
pursuant to which the Company must file a registration statement with the SEC, with respect to the shares. In addition, the Company and Lateral entered into a Redemption Rights
Agreement whereby Lateral may request redemption of some or all of its shares at any time after October 28, 2017, subject to the Company (a) meeting certain minimum capitalization
and EBITDA requirements; and (b) being able to continue as a going concern on a post-redemption basis. The redemption price per share is variable and equals 10 (ten) times the last
twelve months EBITDA, multiplied by the Lateral fully-diluted ownership percentage and then divided by the Lateral shares outstanding. In addition, Lateral was granted anti-dilution
rights which permit it to receive additional equity securities to maintain its fully-diluted ownership interest to the extent that the Company issues equity securities to third parties, up to
a maximum of $5,000,000. Furthermore, so long as Lateral maintains a fully-diluted ownership interest of 10% or more, the Company may not without Lateral’s consent (a) enter into
new indebtedness exceeding $400,000; (b) undertake a Major Transaction Event (as defined); or (c) terminate or replace its Chief Executive Officer.

Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and September 30, 2015
Cash Used by Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities was $11,580,423 during the year ended December 31, 2016, $1,437,803 for the three months ended December 31, 2015, and $64,392 during the
year ended September 30, 2015. For the year ended December 31, 2016, cash used by operating activities was primarily attributable to the net loss for the period, and an increase in
accounts receivable and other assets of $6.4 million, partially offset by an increase in accounts payable of $1,809,093. For the three months ended December 31, 2015, the cash used by
operating activities was primarily attributable to the net loss for the period and a decrease in accounts receivable of $231,035 which was offset by an increase in accounts payable of
$1,076,170. For the year ended September 30, 2015, cash used in operating activities was primarily attributable to the net loss for the period and a decrease in accounts receivable of
$279,844, offset by an increase in accounts payable of $3,602,899.

Cash Provided/Used by Investing Activities

Cash provided by investing during the year ended December 31, 2016, was $2,155,045, primarily derived from the restricted cash account. Comparatively, cash used in investing
activities was $3,097,584 for the three months ended December 31, 2015 related to purchases of property and equipment and the restricted cash account. For the year ended September
30, 2015 cash used in investing activities was $125,573, primarily related to purchases of property and equipment.

Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities was $10,631,857 during the year ended December 31, 2016, as compared to cash provided by financing activities of $4,532,780 for the three
months ended December 31, 2015 and $396,451 during the year ended September 30, 2015. During the year ended December 31, 2016, we received cash proceeds of $2,628,000 from
the sale of our common stock from an equity raise, $875,000 from the collection of subscriptions receivable, and $8,281,271 from the issuance of notes payable, partially offset by note
payments and the payment of deferred financing costs. During the three months ended December 31, 2015, cash provided by financing was $4,532,780, primarily a result of
$8,000,000 from the new senior note, partially offset by $2,194,376 payments on notes payable, and $874,516 payment of deferred financing costs. During the year ended September
30, 2015, cash provided by financing was $396,451, comprised of $660,000 of proceeds on the repayment of our subscription receivable, $430,683 of cash proceeds from the sale of
preferred stock and $183,538 of cash advances received from related parties.
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Off Bal Sheet Arr ts

2
None.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

FTE Networks, Inc. is a “smaller reporting company” as defined by Regulations S-K and as such, is not required to provide the information contained in this item pursuant to
Regulation S-K.

ITEM 8. Financial Stat ts and Suppl tary Data.

The financial statements required to be included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K appear immediately following the signature page to this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning
on page F-1.

ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls are procedures that are designed with the objective of ensuring that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act, such as this
Annual Report, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls are also designed with the
objective of ensuring that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including the Principal Executive and Accounting Officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Internal controls are procedures which are designed with the objective of providing reasonable assurance that (1) our transactions are
properly authorized, recorded and reported; and (2) our assets are safeguarded against unauthorized or improper use, to permit the preparation of our consolidated financial statements
in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles.

In connection with the preparation of this Annual Report, management, with the participation of our Principal Executive and Financial Officers, has evaluated the effectiveness of the
design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)). Based upon that evaluation, our Principal Executive and
Financial Officers concluded that, as of December 31, 2016, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective.

Management’s Assessment of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (“ICFR”) for the Company. Our internal control
system was designed to, in general, provide reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and board regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial
statements, but because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2016. The framework used by management in making that
assessment was the criteria set forth in the document entitled “2013 Internal Control - Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on that assessment, management concluded that, during the period covered by this report, such internal controls and procedures were not effective as of December
31, 2016 and that material weaknesses in ICFR existed as more fully described below.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, within the meaning of Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (“PCAOB”) Audit Standard No. 5, in
internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Management has identified the following material weaknesses which have caused management to conclude that as of December 31, 2016 our
internal controls over financial reporting were not effective at the reasonable assurance level:

As of December 31, 2016, management has not completed an effective assessment of the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting based on the 2013 Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) framework. Management has concluded that, during the period covered by this report, our internal controls and procedures were not effective to
detect the inappropriate application of U.S. GAAP. Management identified the following material weaknesses set forth below in our internal control over financial reporting.

1. We lack the necessary corporate accounting resources to maintain adequate segregation of duties.
2. We did not perform an effective risk assessment or monitor internal controls over financial reporting.
3. We do not have written documentation of our internal control policies and procedures. Written documentation of key internal controls over financial reporting is a requirement

of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act which is applicable to us for the year ended December 31, 2016. Management evaluated the impact of our failure to have written
documentation of our internal controls and procedures on our assessment of our disclosure controls and procedures and has concluded that the control deficiency that resulted
represented a material weakness.

4. We lack the appropriate resources to ensure all required reports are timely filed.

During 2016, the Company made progress to remedy these weaknesses through the hiring of a VP of Finance and as of April 10, 2017, has hired a financial controller. The Company
is continuing to further remediate these weaknesses as resources permit.

We have taken steps to remediate the weakness described above by creating and implementing certain internal control process in both the operations and financial area. Management
will continue to adopt financial procedures and controls via internal policies and ensure employees abide by these policies as they apply to financial reporting.

Notwithstanding the assessment that our ICFR was not effective and that there are material weaknesses as identified herein, we believe that our consolidated financial statements
contained in this Annual Report fairly present our financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods covered thereby in all material respects.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management’s report
was not subject to attestation by the Company’s registered public accounting firm as we are a smaller reporting company and are not required to provide the report.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, there were no changes, except as highlighted above, in our internal controls over financial reporting, or in other factors that could
significantly affect these controls, that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations of Controls

Management does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all error and all fraud. Controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-
making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by
collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of
future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or deterioration in the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system,
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

ITEM 9B. Other Information.
None.
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PART III
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters, Control Persons and Corporate Governance.

The following table sets forth information regarding the members of our Board and our executive officers.

Name Age Position

Michael Palleschi 41 Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board
David Lethem 58 Chief Financial Officer

Lynn Martin 48 Chief Operating Officer

Set forth below is a biographical description of each of our directors and senior executive officers based on information supplied by each of them. There are no family relationships
between any of our directors or executive officers.

Michael Palleschi, Chief Executive Officer; Chairman of the Board of Directors

Mr. Michael Palleschi currently serves as the Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors of FTE Networks since being appointed in January 2014. Mr. Palleschi
has over 16 years of experience in the telecom industry and in his current position as CEO, he is taking a hands-on approach of overseeing day-to-day operation for all core business
structures. Responsibilities include supervising the managerial team, ensuring project efficiency from on-boarding to completion, maintaining corporate communication, new business
development, office advancement, vendor and client relations, corporate compliance continuance, procurement and contracts, and operations budget management.

As a customer focused and results driven executive, he has a proven talent for harnessing cutting-edge technology to strengthen corporate systems and maximize operations. He is an
established business cultivator that has aggressive experience in managing small to large firms, through the period of company launch to multi-million dollar success and has done so in
highly technical fields. With his expert knowledge in developing and delivering communications networks, he has maintained a reputable record of aligning corporate processes with
the company growth strategy. His core competency is based on streamlining operations, improving service-delivery efficiency and enhancing the bottom line. Being a decisive, results-
driven project and program leader he has remained committed to reducing costs and increasing ROI through constant technical innovation.

Mr. Palleschi joined FTE Networks in October 2010 where he served as COO of Focus Venture Partners, which featured investments in growing telecom companies including Focus
Fiber Solutions, Jus-Com and Townsend Careers. Prior to Focus Venture Partners, from June 2007 until 2010, he was the Director of Infrastructure Services for South Florida facilities
based Telecommunications Company start up. From 2000 to 2007, he held several Senior Management roles at Level 3 Communications in New York and Georgia. Mr. Palleschi has
also held several Sr. Management/Executive roles at major telecommunications companies such as Qwest Communications and MCI. Mr. Palleschi holds multiple degrees in both
Engineering and Business Management. Mr. Palleschi also holds several professional and technical certifications.

Lynn Martin, Chief Operating Officer

Lynn Martin was named Chief Operating Officer effective September 27, 2016. As COO, Mr. Martin will be responsible for the prioritization and alignment of company initiatives
overseeing, developing, and setting the strategic direction for the day-to-day operations of FTE Networks and ensuring operational excellence across the company. Prior to joining
FTE, Mr. Martin was head of the communications, software, and technology division of Nexius where he was responsible for growing the business by delivering end-to-end network
solutions for emerging technologies, such as Open Source/NFV/SDN and infrastructure services that provided relevant value to customers and helped them to optimize their
businesses. In addition to leading the software and technology teams, he created several new business offerings in Engineering, Fiber and Open Source development where he joined
efforts with Open Compute Project and Telecom Infra Project communities both founded by Facebook to provide new network architectures and solutions with greater simplicity and
efficiency. Before Nexius, Martin served as Executive Director of Telcordia Technologies, where he ran the company’s next generation software product line, was a senior strategist in

Accenture’s Network Practice, and spent over a decade at Level 3 Communications at VP of Operational Integration and Process Management.
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David Lethem, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. David Lethem was named Chief Financial Officer of FTE in June 2014. He is responsible for the financial management of the Company. Mr. Lethem was originally hired by FTE
in April 2014 as VP of Corporate Compliance.

Prior to joining FTE, Mr. Lethem was the Director of Finance and Audit for Audit Management Solutions, Incorporated since November of 2007. He was directly responsible for the
financial, operational, and audit management of both public and private companies during that time, working the banking, telecommunications, mobile marketing, manufacturing, and
finance sectors. Additionally, his experience during that time involved reverse mergers, SEC compliance, international operations, and technical accounting matters.

Mr. Lethem earned his Bachelor of Arts degree at the University of Dubuque, his MBA from California Coast University, and holds his CIA and CRMA from the Institute of Internal
Auditors.

Board and Board Committees

Our business, property and affairs are managed by or under the direction of the Board of Directors (the “Board”). There are currently five members of the Board: Michael Palleschi
(Chairman), Brad Mitchell, Luisa Ingargiola, Chris Ferguson, and Pat O’Hare. All board members except Mr. Palleschi qualify as independent directors.

The Board has formed the following committees: audit and compensation. The Board has adopted charters for both committees. The Audit Committee is comprised of Luisa Ingargiola
(Chairperson) and Patrick O’Hare. The Board has determined that Ms. Ingargiola qualifies as a financial expert. The Compensation Committee is comprised of Chris Ferguson
(Chairman) and Luisa Ingargiola.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics to that applies to all Company employees.

Securities Trading Policy

The Board of Directors adopted a Securities Trading Policy that applies to all Company employees.
Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Our directors and executive officers are indemnified as provided by the Nevada law and our Bylaws. These provisions state that our directors may cause us to indemnify a director or
former director against all costs, charges and expenses, including an amount paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment, and reasonably incurred by him as a result of him acting as a
director. The indemnification of costs can include an amount paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment. Such indemnification is at the discretion of our board of directors and is
subject to the Securities and Exchange Commission’s policy regarding indemnification.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors, officers or persons controlling us pursuant to the foregoing provisions,
or otherwise. We have been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission, such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Act and is,
therefore, unenforceable.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16 of the Exchange Act requires that reports of beneficial ownership of common stock and changes in such ownership be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
by Section 16 “reporting persons,” including directors, certain officers, holders of more than 10% of the outstanding common stock and certain trusts of which reporting persons are
trustees. We are required to disclose in this Annual Report each reporting person whom we know to have failed to file any required reports under Section 16 on a timely basis during
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. To our knowledge, based solely on a review of copies of Forms 3, 4 and 5 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and written
representations that no other reports were required, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, our officers, directors and 10% stockholders complied with all Section 16(a) filing
requirements applicable to them, except one Form 5 by Michael Palleschi, Chief Executive Officer, one Form 5 by David Lethem, Chief Financial Officer, and one Form 3 by Lynn
Martin, Chief Operating Officer. Also, three Form 13-G’s to be filed by TLP Investments LLC, TBK Investments LLC, and 5G Investments LLC. The information for these Forms
has been compiled and will be filed.
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ITEM 11. Executive Compensation
Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets for information regarding compensation earned by our named executive officers:

Non-
Qualified
Non-equity Deferred
Stock Stock Incentive Plan Compensation All Other
Name and Principal Salary Bonus Awards Options Compensation Earnings Compensation Total
Position Year $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Michael Palleschi, 2016 288,010 - - - - - - 288,010
Chief Executive Officer 2015 249,864 - - - - - - 249,864
David Lethem, 2016 118,846 - - - - - - 118,846
Chief Financial Officer 2015 120,000 - - - - - - 120,000
Lynn Martin, 2016 152,885 - - - - - - 152,885

Chief Operating Officer @ 2015 - - - - - - - -
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End

As of December 31, 2016, we did not have any equity incentive plan awards outstanding.

Employment Agreements

On June 13, 2014, FTE Networks entered into an employment agreement with Michael Palleschi whereby Mr. Palleschi agreed to serve as our Chief Executive Officer in consideration
of a salary of $250,000 per year, with standard employee insurance and other benefits. The employment agreement commenced on June 13, 2014 and ends on June 13, 2017, after
which it is renewable on a year to year basis, until terminated by either party with 30 days written notice. On October 26, 2015 the employment agreement was amended to extend the

term of Mr. Palleschi’s employment through June 13, 2019.

On June 2, 2014, the Company entered into an employment agreement with David Lethem to serve as our Chief Financial Officer in consideration of a salary of $120,000 per year.
The employment agreement ends on June 2, 2017.

Effective September 27, 2016, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Lynn Martin to serve as the Company’s Chief Operating Officer in consideration of a salary
of $250,000 per year The employment agreement commenced on September 27, 2016 and ends on September 27, 2019.

Grants of Plan Based Awards

We did not make any plan based equity or non-equity awards grants to named executives during the year ended September 30, 2015, three months ended December 31, 2015, and the
year ended December 31, 2016.

Option Exercises

There were no options exercised by our named officers during the years ended September 30, 2015, three months ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended December 31, 2016. As
of December 31, 2016, the Company did not have a stock option plan.

27




Compensation of Directors

Below is the compensation table for the four independent board members. The Company does not provide additional compensation for non-independent directors.

Independent Director Name Board Fee Stock Compensation
Luisa Ingargiola $ 5,000 $ 0
Patrick O"Hare $ 0 3 0
Brad Mitchel $ 0 S 0
Chris Ferguson $ 17,000 $ 0

Pension, Retirement or Similar Benefit Plans

There are no arrangements or plans in which we provide pension, retirement or similar benefits for directors or executive officers. We have no material bonus or profit sharing plans
pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation is or may be paid to our directors or executive officers, except that stock options may be granted at the discretion of the board of
directors or a committee thereof.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.

The following table sets forth, as of March 20, 2017, certain information concerning beneficial ownership of shares of our common stock with respect to (i) each person known to us to
own 5% or more of the outstanding shares of our common stock, (ii) each director of our company, (iii) the executive officers of our company, and (iv) all directors and officers of our
company as a group. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and generally includes voting or investment power
with respect to securities. Shares of Common Stock that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days hereof are deemed to be beneficially owned by the person holding such
securities for the purpose of computing the percentage of ownership of such person, but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any
other person.

Common Stock

Beneficially Owned (1) Voting Rights (2)
Name of Beneficial Owner Shares %o Shares %o
Directors and Olfficers
Michael Palleschi, CEO; Chairman of the Board 6,950,580 7.8% 6,950,580 7.65%
David Lethem, Chief Financial Officer 1,937,640 2.2% 1,937,640 2.13%
Lynn Martin, Chief Operating Officer 1,560,280 1.8% 1,560,280 1.72%
Luisa Ingargiola, Director 50,000 0.05% 50,000 0.05%
Patrick O’Hare, Director 50,000 0.05% 50,000 0.05%
Brad Mitchell, Director 60,000 0.07% 60,000 0.07%
Chris Ferguson, Director 50,000 0.05% 50,000 0.05%
All Officers as a group
(7 persons) 10,658,500 12.0% 10,658,500 11.7%
5% Shareholders
5G Investments, LLC®) 24,345,400 27.3% 24,345,400 26.8%
TBK 327 Partners, LLC ¥ 6,692,260 7.5% 6,692,260 7.3%
TLP Investments, LLC ) 8,908,900 10.0% 8,908,900 9.8%
Lateral Investment
Management 11,106,880 12.5% 11,106,880 12.2%

* Less than 1%.
(1) Based on 89,126,752 shares of our common stock outstanding on December 31, 2016

Based on 89,126,752 of our common stock outstanding on December 31, 2016, the voting rights associated with the 500 Series A Preferred shares and 295 Preferred Series A-1
shares.,

@

-

(3) The control person of 5G Investments, LLC is Hugh Regan, the president of 5G Management, LLC, who is the holder of 800 shares of our common stock.

-

(4) The control person of TBK 327 Partners, LLC is Christopher Ferguson. The address of record for Mr. Ferguson is 1758 Red Hawk Way, Bethlehem, PA 18018.

=

(5) The control person of TLP Investments, LLC is Amber Marshall. The address of record for Ms. Marshall is 1454 Palma

Blanca Ct, Naples, FL 34109.

=

(6

=

Lateral Investment Management is the Company’s Secured Senior Lender.
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ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence.

The following is a description of transactions during the year ended December 31, 2016 in which the transaction involved a material dollar amount and in which any of our directors,
executive officers or holders of more than 5% of our common stock had or will have a direct or indirect material interest, other than compensation which is described under “Executive
Compensation.” Management believes the terms obtained or consideration that was paid or received, as applicable, in connection with the transactions described below were
comparable to terms available or the amounts that would be paid or received, as applicable, in arms’ length transactions:

Through December 31, 2016, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) provided cash advances witnessed by an interest bearing note, and from time to time, advances for the Company’s
behalf on credit cards the CEO is personally liable for, aggregating $503,856. These advances totaled $245,764 as of December 31, 2015, and $204,359 as of September 30, 2015.
Additionally, the Company entered into several secured equipment financing arrangements with total obligations of approximately $298,000 as of December 31, 2016 that required the
guaranty of a Company officer, which was provided by the CEO.

The Chief Financial Officer personally guaranteed several secured equipment financing arrangements with total obligations of approximately $320,525 as of December 31, 2016.
Additionally, the Chief Financial Officer provided a personal credit card account for the purchase of goods and services by FTE. While the credit card balances are reflected in the
Company’s books and records, the CFO is personally liable for the payment of the entire amount of the open credit obligation, which was $57,525 as of December 31, 2016.

Director Independence

Our Board of Directors has undertaken a review of its composition and the independence of each director. Based on the review of each director’s background, employment and
affiliations, including family relationships, the Board of Directors has determined that Mr. O’Hare, Mr. Ferguson, Mr. Mitchell, and Ms. Ingargiola qualify as “independent directors”
under the rules and regulations of the SEC. In making this determination, our Board of Directors considered the current and prior relationships that each non-employee director has
with the Company and all other facts and circumstances our Board of Directors deemed relevant in determining their independence, including the beneficial ownership of our capital
stock. Mr. Palleschi, Chairman of the Board of Directors, is not deemed independent as a result of his service as our Chief Executive Officer.

Indebtedness of Directors, Senior Officers, Executive Officers and Other Management

None of our directors or executive officers or any associate or affiliate of our Company during the last two fiscal years is or has been indebted to our Company by way of guarantee,
support agreement, letter of credit or other similar agreement or understanding currently outstanding.

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Transitional Three

Months Ended
December 31, 2015

Fee Category Fiscal 2016 Fees Fees Fiscal 2015 Fees
Audit Fees (1) $ 198,424  § 90,314  § 159,542
Audit Related Fees @ - - 163,339
Tax Fees - - -
All Other Fees - - -

$ 198,424 $ 90,314 $ 322,881

(1) Audit Fees consist of fees billed and expected to be billed for services rendered for the audit of our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2016
and September 30, 2015, and the transitional three months ended December 31, 2015.

(2) Audit-Related Fees consist of fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit of our financial statements and are not reported
under “Audit Fees.”

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

All audit and non-audit services performed by the independent accountants have been pre-approved by the Audit Committee to assure that such services do not impair the auditors’
independence from us.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) No financial statement schedules are provided because the information called for is not required or is shown either in the financial statements or notes thereto.

(b) The following exhibits are provided as required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K (§229.601 of this chapter):

Exhibit Number Description

23 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated June 19, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed June 25, 2013).

32 Certificate of Designation of the Series B Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
August 19, 2008).

3.4 Certificate of Designation of Series C Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
March 31, 2011 filed on May 16, 2011).

3.5 Amendment No. 1 to the Certificate of Designation of the Series C Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2011 filed on May 16, 2011).

3.6 Articles of Merger (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed June 25, 2013).

3.7 Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed June 25, 2013).

3.8 Certificate of Designation of the Series D Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed June 25, 2013).

39 Certificate of Designation of the Series E Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed June 25, 2013).

3.10 Articles of Merger (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed March 19, 2014).

3.11 Certificate of Designation of the Series F Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K, filed November 3, 2015).

4.5 Form of warrant to purchase common stock granted in connection with the offering of Series A and Series A-1 Preferred Stock, as amended and recirculated
July 30, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed January 13, 2009; Company File # 000-31355).

4.6 Form of warrant to purchase common stock granted to the placement agent retained in connection with the offering of Series A and Series A-1 Preferred
Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 28, 2007; Company File # 000-31355).

4.7 Form of warrant to purchase common stock granted to affiliates of placement agent retained in connection with the offering of Series A and Series A-1
Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 28, 2007; Company File # 000-
31355).

4.8 Form of warrant to purchase common stock granted in connection with the offering of Series B Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 19, 2008; Company File # 000-31355).

4.9 Form of warrant to purchase common stock granted in connection with the July 2008 offering of Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 19, 2008; Company File # 000-31355).

4.10 Form of warrant to purchase common stock issued to J. Sherman Henderson and Robert A. Clarkson on July 10, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 19, 2008; Company File # 000-31355).

4.11 Form of the Convertible Promissory Notes, dated January 22, 2009, made and issued by the Company to various investors, in the aggregate principal amount
of $500,000 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed February 23, 2009; Company File # 000-
31355).

4.12 Form of the Warrants, dated January 22, 2009, made and issued by the Company to various investors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the

Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed February 23, 2009; Company File # 000-31355).
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10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15
10.16

10.17

10.18

Form of warrant to purchase common stock granted to the investors in connection with the June 2009 offering of Common Stock (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed August 12, 2009; Company File # 000-31355).

Form of warrant to purchase common stock granted to the investors in connection with the September 2009 Private Placement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.14 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed December 29, 2009; Company File # 000-31355).

Promissory Note made by the Company to TLP Investments, dated December 31, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.15 to the Company’s report
on Form 10/A, Amendment 2, filed on June 30, 2015).

Promissory Note made by the Company to TBK 327 Partners, LLC dated January 23, 2014(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.16 to the Company’s
report on Form 10/A, Amendment 2, filed on June 30, 2015).

Promissory Note made by the Company to TBK 327 Partners, LLC, dated May 16, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 to the Company’s report
on Form 10/A, Amendment 2, filed on June 30, 2015).

Promissory Note made by the Company to TLP Investments, dated May 16, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.18 to the Company’s report on
Form 10/A, Amendment 2, filed on June 30, 2015).

Employment Agreement between the Company and Theresa Carlise, dated February 1, 2013, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement,
dated March 1, 2014 and Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement, dated May 14, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
report on Form 10/A, Amendment 2, filed on June 30, 2015).

Securities Purchase Agreement dated June 19, 2013, by and between Focus Venture Partners, Inc. and 5G Investments, LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed June 25, 2013).

Assignment and Consent to Assignment Agreement by and among Focus Venture Partners, Inc., Beacon Enterprise Solutions Group, Inc. and 5G
Investments, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed June 25, 2013).

Amended and Restated Guarantee and Collateral Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed June 25, 2013).
Pledge and Escrow Agreement dated June 19, 2013, by and among Focus Ventures Partner, Inc., Beacon Enterprise Solutions Group, Inc. and the
shareholders of Focus Ventures Partners, Inc.(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed June 25, 2013).

Employment Agreement between the Company and John Wood, dated October 14, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s report
on Form 10/A, Amendment 2, filed on June 30, 2015).

Factoring Agreement, dated May 12, 2014 by and between Focus Fiber Solutions, LLC and Amerifactors Financial Group, LLC (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on May 16, 2014).

Factoring Agreement, dated May 12, 2014 by and between JusCom, Inc. and Amerifactors Financial Group, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on May 16, 2014).

Employment Agreement between the Company and David Lethem dated June 2, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed June 3, 2014).

Board Appointment Letter Agreement by and between the Company and John Klumpp dated June 2, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Form 8-K filed on June 5, 2014). **

Employment Agreement between the Company and Michael Palleschi dated June 13, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
report on Form 10/A, Amendment 2, filed on June 30, 2015).

Offer of Settlement by and between the SEC and the Company dated September 8, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form
8-K filed on September 11, 2014).

Credit Agreement by and among JUS-COM, Inc. Credit Parties, date October 28, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-
K filed on November 3, 2015).

Form of Initial Term Loan dated November 3, 2015 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on November 3, 2015).
Guaranty and Security Agreement dated October 28, 2015 among JUS-COM, Inc., FTE Networks, Inc, and Grantors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on November 3, 2015).

Registration Rights Agreement dated October 28, 2015 by and between FTE Networks, Inc, Lateral Juscom Feeder, LLC and Lateral FTE Feeder LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on November 3, 2015).

Redemption Rights Agreement dated October 28, 2015 by and between FTE Networks, Inc, Lateral Juscom Feeder, LLC and Lateral FTE Feeder LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on November 3, 2015).
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10.19

10.20

14.1

14.2

14.3
21
31.1
31.2
321
322
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

* Filed herewith

Voting and Cooperation Agreement dated October 28, 2015 among Lateral Juscom Feeder, LLC, Lateral FTE Feeder LLC and the stockholders of FTE
Networks, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed on November 3, 2015).

Supporting documents and Credit Agreement dated April 20, 2017 for the acquisition of Benchmark Builders Inc between the Company, Benchmark
Builders Incorporated, and Lateral Investment Management Services, LLC(incorporated by reference to the Company’s 8-K filed on April 24, 2017.

Code of Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed January 13, 2009; Company File # 000-
31355).

Stock Purchase Agreement dated March 9, 2017 between FTE Networks Inc. and Benchmark Builders Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Form 8-K filed on March 9, 2017)

Securities Trading Policy adopted by the Board of Directors April 14,2017

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.*

Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

Certification of the Principal Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002*

Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002***

Certification of the Principal Accounting Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002***

XBRL Instance Document*

XBRL Schema Document*

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document*

XBRL Definition Linkbase Document*

XBRL Label Linkbase Document*

XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document*

** Denotes compensatory plan or management contract

*#* Furnished herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Annual Report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FTE NETWORKS, INC.

Date: May 11. 2017 By: /s/Michael Palleschi

Michael Palleschi
Principal Executive Officer

Date: May 11.2017 By: /s/David Lethem

David Lethem
Principal Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on
the dates indicated:

Date: May 11. 2017 By: /s/Michael Palleschi

Michael Palleschi
Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer)
Chairman of the Board and Directors

Date: May 11. 2017 By: /s/David Lethem

David Lethem
Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer)

Date: May 11. 2017 By: /s/Luisa Ingargiola

Luisa Ingargiola
Director

Date: May 11. 2017 By: /s/ Chris Ferguson

Chris Ferguson
Director

Date: May 11. 2017 By: /s/Brad Mitchell

Brad Mitchell
Director

Date: May 11.2017 By: /s/ Patrick O’Hare

Patrick O’Hare
Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors and Shareholders
of FTE Networks, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of FTE Networks, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and September 30, 2015
and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ deficiency and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2016, the three month transitional period
ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended September 30, 2015. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform,
an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of FTE Networks, Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and
2015 and September 30, 2015, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2016, the three month transitional period ended
December 31, 2015 and the year ended September 30, 2015, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/S/ Marcum LLP
Marcum llp
New York, NY
May 11.2017
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

Property and equipment, net
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to related parties
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Notes payable, current portion
Factoring lines of credit
Notes payable, related parties
Warrant derivative liability
Accrued litigation costs
Accrued lease termination costs
Total Current Liabilities

Notes payable, non-current portion
Senior note payable, non-current portion, net of original issue discount and
deferred costs
Accrued interest, non-current portion
Total Liabilities

Temporary Equity:
Series D convertible preferred stock, subject to put provision, stated value
$4.00, 2,000,000 designated and 0, 163,441, and 0 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and September 30,
2015, respectively
Series F convertible preferred stock, subject to put provision, stated value
$4.00, 2,000,000 designated and 0, 391,903, and 0 shares issued and
outstanding at September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively
Common stock; $0.001 par value, subject to put provision, 200,000,000
shares authorized and 11,106,880 ,0, and 0 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015,
respectively

Total Temporary Equity

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ Deficiency:
Preferred stock; $0.01 par value, 5,000,000 shares authorized:
Series A convertible preferred stock, stated value $1,000, 4,500 shares
designated and 500 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2016,
December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015, respectively (liquidation
preference $1,434,689)
Series A-1 convertible preferred stock, stated value $1,000, 1,000 shares
designated and 295 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2016,
December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015 (liquidation preference
$884,753)
Series D convertible preferred stock, stated value $4.00, 2,000,000
designated and 0, 1,830,759, and 1,830,759 shares issued and outstanding
at December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015,
respectively
Series F convertible preferred stock, stated value $4.00, 1,980,000
designated and 0, 525,559, and 0 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015,
respectively
Common stock; $0.001 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized and
78,019,872, 2,319,524, and 2,266,887 shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015,
respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Subscriptions receivable
Accumulated deficit
Total Stockholders’ Deficiency
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficiency

As Of

December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015

September 30, 2015

1,411,612 $ 205,133 207,740

- 3,003,226 -
7,019,576 1,446,480 1,215,445
2,833,311 2,047,606 2,052,583
11,264,499 6,702,445 3,475,768
3,466,519 2,544,497 1,419,040
14,731,018 $ 9,246,942 4,894,808
2357334 $ 2,998,240 2,476,901
99,860 245,764 183,538
3,202,105 3,578,945 2,965,290

7,611,335 1,887,120 1,295,271
- - 600,554

791,158 287,301 287,302
594,000 - -

- 1,335,771 1,840,891

- - 113,000
14,655,792 10,333,141 9,762,747
2,362,262 1,572,063 4,571,402
7,576,440 6,846,110 B
- - 1,686,256
24,594,494 18,751,314 16,020,405
- 129,027 -

= 308,353 =

437,380 - -
437,380 437,380 2

5 5 5

3 3 3

. 18,308 18,308

- 5,256 -

78,019 2319 2,267
11,500,477 3,053,075 2,565,709
(2,828,997) (204,789) (349,789)
(19,050,363 ) (12,815,929) (13,362,100)
(10,300,856 ) (9,941,752) (11,125,597)
14,731,018 $ 9,246,942 4,894,808

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Revenues, net of discounts
Cost of revenues
Gross Profit

Operating Expenses
Compensation expense, selling, general, and administrative
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Travel expense
Occupancy costs
Transaction expenses
Acquisition expenses
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

Other (Expense) Income
Interest expense
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Debt settlement expense
Forbearance incentive expense
Stock incentive expense to investors
Change in warrant fair market valuation
Extinguishment loss
Gain on extinguishment of debt
Total Other (Expense) Income

Net (Loss) Income
Preferred stock dividends
Net (Loss) Income attributable to common shareholders

Loss per Share
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
Basic

Diluted

FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended Three Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015

$ 12,269,079 $ 3,070,805 14,388,682
8,848,254 2,567,858 11,072,080

3,420,825 502,947 3,316,602

2,313,433 1,356,288 1,888,126

1,735,537 1,172,508 2,400,947

319,074 178,140 389,035

744,765 92,497 201,165

226,004 - 44,150

483,533 - -

5,822,346 2,799,433 4,923,423
(2,401,521) (2,296,486) (1,606,821)
(2,272,273) (435,463) (1,308,076)

(725,165) (72,877) -

(421,589) (80,536) (538,861)
- - (101,156)

(35,186) - -

(64,800) - -

(313,900)

- 3,431,533 -

(3,832,913) 2,842,657 (1,948,093)

(6,234,434) 546,171 (3,554,914)
(79,561) (19,891) (79,561)

$ (6,313,995) 526,280 (3,634,475)
$ (0.10) $ 0.23 (1.71)
$ 0.10) $ 0.19 (1.71)
64,770,155 2,319,311 2,127,222

64,770,155 2,713,474 2,127,222

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




09/30/2014
Shares/Amounts
Preferred
Shares Issued to
Settle Debt
Preferred
Shares Issued
for Forbearance
Common
Shares Issued
for Forbearance
Cancellation of
Preferred
Shares
Accumulated
Dividends
Cancelled for
Conversion to
Common Stock
Collection of
Subscription
Receivable
Preferred Stock
Dividends

True Up to
Transfer Agent
Records
Preferred
Shares Issued
for Cash

Net Income
09/30/2015
Shares/Amounts
Preferred Series
F Issued to
Employees
Preferred Series
F Issued for
Note Payables
Common
Shares to Settle
Debt
Repayment of
Subscription
Receivable
Accrued
Dividends -
Preferred Stock
Net Loss
12/31/2015
Amounts

Stock Incentive
to Investors
Common
Shares Issued to
Employees
Common
Shares to Settle
Debt

Common
Shares Issued to
Consultant
Common
Shares Issued
for Equity Raise

Series F
adjustment to
transfer agent
records

Series F issued
to directors and
employees for
compensation
Conversion of
Series D to
Common Stock
Conversion of
Series F to
Common Stock
Repayment of
Subscription
Receivable
Accrued
Dividends -
Preferred Stock

FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016, TRANSITIONAL THREE MONTHS ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2015, AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

Series A Series A-1 Series D Series F Common Paid in Subscription  Accumulated Total
Shares Amount Shares Amount  Shares Amount __ Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Receivable Deficit Equity
500 $ 5 295§ 3 1,693,981 $ 16,940 -$ - 1,999,567 § 1,999 $ 968215 §  (660,000)$ (9,807,186)$ (9,480,024)
- - - - 130,832 1,308 - - - - 522,020 - - 523,328
- - - - 12,500 125 - - - - 49,875 - - 50,000
- - - - - - - - 255,778 256 50,900 - - 51,156
- - - - (201,672) (2,016) - - - - 2,016 - - -
- - - - - - - - - - 273,735 - - 273,735
- - - - - - - - - - - 660,000 - 660,000
- - - - - - - - - - (79,561) - - (79,561)
- - - - - - - - 11,542 12 (12) - - -
- - - - 195,118 1,951 - - - - 778,521 (349,789) - 430,683
- - - - - - - - - - - - (3,554,914) _ (3,554,914)
500 $ 5 295§ 3 1,830,759 $ 18,308 -$ - 2,266,887 $ 2,267 2,565,709 $  (349,789)$ (13,362,100) $(11,125,597)
- - - - - 519,309 5,193 - - 337,550 - - 342,743
- - - - - 6,250 63 - - 24,937 - - 25,000
- - - - - - 52,637 52 144,770 - - 144,822
- - - - - - - - - - 145,000 - 145,000
- - - - - - - - - (19,891) - - (19,891)
- - - - - - - - - - - 546,171 546,171
500 $ 5 295 § 3 1,830,759 $ 18,308 525,559 $ 5,256 2,319,524 $ 2,319 $ 3,053,075 $  (204,789)$ (12,815,929) $ (9,941,752)
- - - - - - 285,664 2,857 - - 961,737 (929,408) - 35,185
- - - - - - - - 5,029,000 5,029 2,584,751 (2,569,800) - 19,980
- - - - - - - - 3,809,389 3,809 1,794,629 - - 1,798,438
- - - - - - - - 841,500 842 444,958 - - 445,800
- - - - - - - - 7,594,999 7,595 2,620,405 - - 2,628,000
- - - - - - 48,250 483 - - (483) - - 0
- - - - - 231,041 2,310 - - 150,177 - - 152,487
- - - - (1,830,759) (18,308) - - 36,615,180 36,615 (18,307) - - -
- - - - - - (1,090,514)  (10,906) 21,810,280 21,810 (10,904) - - -
- - - - - - - - - - - 875,000 - 875,000
- - - - - - - - - - (79,561) - - (79,561)



Neh95516

Amounts 500 $ 5 295§ 3 08 0 08 0

——(6:234434) —(6:234434)
78,019,872 § 78,019 $11,500,477 $ (2,828,997)$ (19,050,363) $(10,300,856)

[1] Value of shares issued of $780,472, less $430,683 expenses paid from proceeds on behalf of the company by the underwriter.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years/Transitional Three Month Ended

Cash flows from operating activities:

Year Ended
December 31, 2016

Three Months Ended
December 31, 2015

Year Ended
September 30, 2015

Net (loss) income $ (6,234,434) $ 546,171 $ (3,554,914)
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash used in operating
activities:
Amortization of deferred financing costs 725,165 72,876 -
Change in warrant valuation 64,800 - -
Provision for bad debts 29,949 - 409,481
Extinguishment loss 313,900
Forbearance incentive expense - - 101,156
Stock based compensation - - 473,328
Depreciation 516,066 96,698 108,324
Amortization of original issue discount 218,691 36,448 -
Payment in kind interest-senior debt 329,831 48,682 -
Stock incentive expense to investors 35,186 -
Stock compensation 618,267 342,743 -
Gain on settlement of lease termination costs - - (226,544)
Gain on extinguishment of senior debt - (3,431,533) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (5,603,046) (231,035) 279,844
Other current assets (785,705) 4,977 (1,257,966)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,809,093 ) 1,076,170 3,602,899
Net cash used in operating activities (11,580,423 ) (1,437,803) (64,392)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (848,181) (94,358) (125,573)
Restricted cash account 3,003,226 (3,003,226) -
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 2,155,045 (3,097,584) (125,573)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Advances (payments) on factor lines of credit, net - (600,554) (383,682)
Advances from related party - - 183,538
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 8,281,271 8,000,000 -
Payments on notes payable (569,869) (2,194,376) (143,786)
Payments on notes payable - related parties (145,904) - (210,302)
Proceeds from notes payable-related parties 503,857 62,226 -
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock - - 430,683
Proceeds from repayment of subscriptions receivable 875,000 140,000 660,000
Proceeds from sale of common stock 2,628,000 - -
Payment of deferred financing costs (940,498) (874,516) (140,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities 10,631,857 4,532,780 396,451
Net change in cash 1,206,479 (2,607) 206,486
Cash, beginning of period 205,133 207,740 1,254
Cash, end of period $ 1,411,612 $ 205,133 $ 207,740
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest $ 1,381,933 $ 264,865 $ 350,922
Cash paid for income taxes $ - $ - $ -
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of notes payable for the purchase of fixed assets $ 589,907 $ 1,127,797 $ 1,314,474
Common stock issued for notes payable $ 1,320,453 $ B $ B
Common stock issued for accounts payable $ 477,985 $ R $ -
Issuance of notes to settle litigation $ 146,000 $ 288,000 $ 200,000
Accrued dividends preferred stock $ 79,561 $ 19,891 $ -
Unpaid subscription for preferred shares $ - $ - $ 349,789
Cancellation of preferred shares $ - $ - $ 202
Preferred shares issued to settle rent obligations $ - $ 25,000 $ =

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND HISTORY
Overview

FTE Networks, Inc. (“FTE” or the “Company”) is a provider of international and regional telecommunications and technology systems and infrastructure services. FTE also offers
managed information technology, telecommunications services, subscriber based services and staffing solutions through the following wholly owned subsidiaries:

o JusCom, Inc., (dba FTE Network Services) specializes in the design, engineering, installation, and maintenance of all forms of telecommunications infrastructure. Services
including engineering consulting, design, installation, maintenance, and emergency response in various categories including cabling, equipment installation and configuration, rack
and stack, wiring build-outs, infrastructure build-outs, DC power installation, OSP/ISP fiber placement, fiber cable splicing and testing.

o FTE Wireless, LLC, offers wireless solutions to major wireless carriers including equipment installation, fiber backhaul, antennae installation and testing, small cell solutions,
fiber-to-site and other turnkey solutions as needed by such clients.

eFocus Venture Partners, Inc. (dba FVP Worx) is a multifaceted employment firm offering full service staffing solutions, specializing in the telecommunications, technology and
construction services industries.

FTE Network Services and FTE Wireless, LLC are reported in the Company’s telecommunications segment. FVP Worx represents the Company’s staffing segment (See Note 13 -
Segment Data).

History

Focus Venture Partners, Inc. (“Focus”) was incorporated in the state of Nevada on March 26, 2012 as a holding company operating in the telecommunications industry managing
and developing its wholly owned subsidiaries, which were focused on the development of telecommunications networks, acting as a service and support provider, as well as
providing temporary and part-time staffing solutions. Through a formerly wholly owned subsidiary, Optos Capital Partners, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Optos™),

Focus, operated the following wholly owned entities:

eFocus Fiber Solutions, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Focus Fiber”), which specialized in the design, engineering, installation, and maintenance of a
telecommunications infrastructure network.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND HISTORY, continued
History, continued

eJusCom, Inc., an Indiana corporation (“JusCom”), which was a telecommunication service provider providing various services including engineering consulting, design,
installation and emergency response in various categories including cable rack/wiring build-outs, infrastructure build-outs, DC power installation, fiber cable splicing and security
camera installation. JusCom also operated as a temporary and permanent staffing agency specializing in the telecommunications market. Prior to the Beacon Merger (see below),
Focus reorganized such that JusCom became a subsidiary of Focus, and was no longer a subsidiary of Optos.

eMDT Labor, LLC d/b/a MDT Technical, a Delaware limited liability company (“MDT”), operated as a workforce management company providing temporary and permanent
staffing services under the MDT Technical brand and as a telecommunication service provider providing various services including engineering consulting, design, installation and
emergency response in various categories including cable rack/wiring build-outs, infrastructure build-outs, DC power installation, fiber cable splicing and security camera
installation under its Beacon Solutions brand.

On May 10, 2013, Beacon Enterprise Solutions Group (“Beacon”), a Nevada Corporation, and Beacon Acquisition Sub, Inc., a Nevada Corporation, entered into a merger agreement
with Focus (the “Merger Agreement”). On June 19, 2013, Focus consummated a “reverse shell merger” with Beacon and Beacon Acquisition Sub, a wholly owned subsidiary of
Beacon (the “Merger Sub”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Merger Sub merged with and into Focus, with Focus continuing as the surviving corporation, with the result that
Focus became a subsidiary of Beacon (the “Beacon Merger”).

In connection with the Beacon Merger, the board of directors authorized the designation of a new series of preferred stock, the Beacon Series D Shares, out of its available “blank
check preferred stock” and authorized the issuance of up to 2,000,000 Beacon Series D Shares. The Company filed a Certificate of Designation with the Secretary of State of the
State of Nevada on June 17, 2013. Under the Certificate of Designation, each Beacon Series D Share has various rights, privileges and preferences, including: (i) a stated value of
$4.00 per share; (ii) mandatory conversion into 20 shares of Common Stock (subject to adjustments) upon the filing of the amendment to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
after incorporating the 1 for 20 reverse stock split of the outstanding shares of common stock required by the Merger Agreement; and (iii) a liquidation preference in the amount of
the stated value.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND HISTORY, continued
History, continued

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement: (i) shares of Series B Preferred Stock of Focus, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Focus Preferred B Shares”) and common stock of
Focus, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Focus Common Stock™) were converted into the right to receive an aggregate of 1,250,011 shares of Beacon Series D Preferred Shares, par
value $0.01 per share); (ii) all shares of Series A Preferred Stock of Focus, par value $0.0001 per share, were converted into the right to receive an aggregate number of 1,000,000
shares of Beacon Series E shares, par value $0.01 per share, (iii) all shares of capital stock of Merger Sub were converted into one share of Focus Common Stock. Each share of
Series D Preferred stock is (a) entitled to vote alongside the common stockholders and has 20 votes; and (b) is convertible into 400 pre-split shares of common stock (equal to 20
shares of common stock on a post-split basis) upon an increase in the number of common shares authorized, and the implementation of a 1-for-20 reverse stock split. Each Beacon
Series E share is entitled to vote alongside the common stockholders and has 1 vote each. The Beacon Series E shares were subject to redemption and were recorded as a liability, but
the shares were returned to the Company and derecognized on September 30, 2013. The Beacon Merger represented a change of control of Beacon and Focus management became
responsible for the consolidated entity.

Following the Beacon Merger, Beacon changed its name to FTE Networks, Inc., which together with its subsidiaries is referred to herein as the “Company” or “FTE”. For
accounting purposes, the Beacon Merger has been treated as an acquisition of Beacon by Focus, whereby Focus was deemed to be the accounting acquirer. The historical
consolidated financial statements prior to June 19, 2013 are those of Focus Venture Partners. In connection with the Beacon Merger, Focus Venture Partners has restated its
statements of stockholders’ deficiency on a recapitalization basis so that all equity accounts and all related footnote disclosures are presented as if the recapitalization had occurred
as of the beginning of the earliest period presented. Accordingly, all Focus common shares transactions occurring prior to the Beacon Merger on June 19, 2013 have been restated
and are disclosed in terms of their FTE Networks Series D preferred share equivalents.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND HISTORY, continued
Stock Purchase Agreement

On March 9, 2017, the Company, entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with (i) Benchmark, and (ii) each of Benchmark’s stockholders. On April

20, 2017 (the “Closing Date”), FTE acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock (the “Benchmark Shares”) of Benchmark Builders, Inc., a privately held New
York corporation (“Benchmark”) from each of its stockholders (collectively, the “Sellers”), pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 9, 2017, by and among

FTE Networks, Benchmark, and the Sellers (the “Purchase Agreement”), as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date (the

“Purchase Agreement Amendment” and together with the Purchase Agreement, the “Amended Purchase Agreement”). FTE Networks, Benchmark, and the Sellers, entered into the

Purchase Agreement Amendment in order to address certain changes in the purchase price as set forth in the Purchase Agreement. The Purchase Agreement provided that the

consideration to the Sellers for the Benchmark Shares would consist of (i) $55,000,000 in cash consideration, (ii) an aggregate of 17,825,350 shares of the Company’s common
stock, and (iii) promissory notes in the aggregate amount of $10,000,000 to the Sellers. The Purchase Agreement Amendment has, inter alia, modified the purchase price set forth in
the Purchase Agreement to consist of (i) cash consideration of approximately $17,250,000, subject to certain prospective working capital adjustments (the “Cash
Consideration”),approximately $10 million cash provided by Lateral and $7 million provided by certain of the sellers, (ii) 26,738,445 shares of FTE Networks” common stock (the
“FTE Shares”), (iii) convertible promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $12,500,000 to certain stockholders of Benchmark (the “Series A Notes”, which mature on
April 20, 2019), (iv) promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $30,000,000 to certain stockholders of Benchmark (the “Series B Notes”, which mature on April 20,
2020) and (v) promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $7,500,000 to certain stockholders of Benchmark (the “Series C Notes”, which mature on October 20, 2018, and
together with the Series A Notes and the Series B Notes, the “Notes™) in the Amended Purchase Agreement. Additionally, Lateral amended its existing credit facility to provide for

the approximate $10 million cash and to restructure the existing debt, which now has a maturity date of March 30, 2019.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US
GAAP”). All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the Company to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. These estimates and judgments
are based on historical information, information that is currently available to the Company and on various other assumptions that the Company believes to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company’s most significant estimates relate to its allowances for receivables and deferred tax assets, plus the
valuation of equity issuances.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all holdings of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. As of September 30, 2015,
December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2016 the Company did not have any cash equivalents

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company recognizes an allowance for doubtful accounts to ensure that accounts receivable are not overstated due to un-collectability. At the time accounts receivable are
originated, the Company considers a reserve for doubtful accounts based on the creditworthiness of customers.

Aged accounts receivable are reviewed by management for collectability. The provision for uncollectible amounts is continually reviewed and adjusted to maintain the allowance at
a level considered adequate to cover future losses. The allowance is management’s best estimate of uncollectible amounts and is determined based on historical performance that is
tracked by the Company on an ongoing basis. The customer is billed after the job has been completed, inspected and approval is obtained by its customer. The segmentation of large
contracts into small manageable contracts allows for a particular job to be completed, inspected and approved for payment by the customer, with this cycle taking approximately only
up to several weeks. The payments terms are generally 30 days. As of December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015, management has provided for an allowance
for doubtful accounts of approximately $119,000, $89,000 and $89,000, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and accounts receivable. The Company places its
cash with financial institutions with high credit ratings, which at times balances exceed the $250,000 FDIC insured amount. The Company is subject to risk of non-payment of its
trade accounts receivable.

Our customer base is highly concentrated. Due to the fact that the majority of our revenues are non-recurring, project-based revenues, it is not unusual for there to be significant
period-to-period shifts in customer concentrations. Revenue may significantly decline if the Company were to lose one or more of its significant customers, or if the Company were
not able to obtain new customers upon the completion of significant contracts.

For the year ended September 30, 2015, the Company’s largest customers included a telecommunications company providing fiber optic based network solutions, (Customer C), and
a corporate staffing customer within the Company’s staffing segment, (Customer D). During the transitional three months ended December 31, 2015, the Company’s largest
customers included a multinational provider of communications technology and services, (Customer I) and a corporate staffing customer within the Company’s staffing segment,
(Customer D). For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company’s largest customers included multinational telecommunications conglomerate (Customer M) and leader service
provider in network managed and professional services, (Customer J).

The following tables set forth our revenues and accounts receivable balances for the periods indicated:

For the Transitional

For the Year Ended Three Months Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015
Revenues $ % $ Y% $ %
Customer C 164,987 1% 41,664 1% 5,196,380 36 %
Customer D - % 1,592,193 52% 5,324,866 37 %
Customer I 91,000 1% 316,931 11% 106,850 1%
Customer J 1,804,760 14% - - - -
Customer M 6,332,966 52% 130,771 4% 552,054 4%
All other customers 3,875,366 32% 989,246 32% 3,208,532 22%
Total Revenues, net of discounts $ 12,269,079 100% 3,070,805 100% $ 14,388,682 100%
For the Transitional
For the Year Ended Three Months Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015
Accounts Receivable $ % $ % $ %
Customer B 85,112 1% 152,475 10% 152,475 12%
Customer E 603,663 9% 718,035 47% 617,825 47%



Customer H
Customer M
All other customers
Total Receivables
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts

Accounts Receivable, net of allowance
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102,796 2% 215,609 14% 50,767 4%
4,624,600 66% 62,233 4% 66,832 5%
1,722,354 22% 387,128 25% 416,546 32%
7,138,525 100% $ 1,535,480 100% $ 1,304,445 100%

(118,949) $ (89,000) $ (89,000)
7,019,576 S 1,446,430 $ 1215445




FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES, continued
Revenue and Cost of Goods Sold Recognition

Generally, including for the staffing business, revenue is recognized when all of the following criteria are met: (1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, (2) delivery has
occurred or services have been rendered, (3) the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable, and (4) collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue in the telecommunication segment is principally all derived from construction projects performed under master and other service agreements as well as from contracts for
specific projects or jobs requiring the construction and installation of an entire infrastructure system or specified units within an entire infrastructure system. The Company provides
services under unit price or fixed price master service or other service agreements under which the Company furnishes specified units of service for a fixed price per unit of service
and revenue is recognized upon completion of the defined project due to its short term nature. Revenue from fixed price contracts provides for a fixed amount of revenue for the
entire project, subject to certain additions for changed scope or specifications. Such contracts provide that the customer accept completion of progress to date and compensate the
Company for services rendered, which may be measured in terms of costs incurred, units installed, hours expended or some other measure of progress. Contract costs include all
direct materials, labor and subcontracted costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance, such as indirect labor, supplies, tools, repairs and the operational costs of
capital equipment. Much of the materials associated with the Company’s work are customer-furnished and are therefore not included in contract revenue and costs.

Management reviews estimates of contract revenue and costs on an ongoing basis. Changes in job performance, job conditions and management’s assessment of expected contract
settlements are factors that influence estimates of total contract value and total costs to complete those contracts and, therefore, the Company’s profit recognition. Changes in these
factors may result in revisions to costs and income, and their effects are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined and accepted by the customer. Provisions for
losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are determined to be probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. The majority of fixed price
contracts are completed within one year.

The Company may incur costs subject to change orders, whether approved or unapproved by the customer, and/or claims related to certain contracts. Management determines the
probability that such costs will be recovered based upon engineering studies and legal opinions, past practices with the customer, specific discussions, correspondence or preliminary
negotiations with the customer. The Company treats such costs as a cost of contract performance in the period incurred if it is not probable that the costs will be recovered, or defers
costs and/or recognizes revenue up to the amount of the related cost if it is probable that the contract price will be adjusted and can be reliably estimated. As of December 31, 2016
and 2015, such amounts were not material. The Company actively engages in substantive meetings with its customers to complete the final approval process, and generally expects
these processes to be completed within one year. The amounts ultimately realized upon final acceptance by its customers could be higher or lower than such estimated amounts.

For short term construction contracts, revenue is recognized once 100% of a contract segment is completed. A contract may have many segments, of which, once a segment is
completed, the revenue for the segment is recognized when no further significant performance obligations exists. The Network’s construction contracts or segments of contracts
typically range from several days to two to four months. Contract costs may be billed as incurred. Contract costs include all direct material and labor costs and those indirect costs
related to contract performance, such as indirect labor, supplies, tools and repairs. Selling, general and administrative costs are charged to expense as incurred.

Changes in job performance, job conditions and estimated profitability, including those arising from contract penalty provisions, changes in raw materials costs, and final contract
settlements may result in revisions to revenue, costs and income and are recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined. Provisions for losses on uncompleted
contracts are made in the period such losses are known.

Deferred Financing Costs

The Company has recorded deferred financing costs as a result of fees incurred by the Company in conjunction with its debt financing activities. These costs are amortized to
interest expense using the straight-line method which approximates the interest rate method over the term of the related debt. As of December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and
September 30, 2015, unamortized deferred financing costs were approximately $619,830, $801,640, and $140,000, respectively and are netted against the related debt. As of
September 30, 2015, the deferred financing costs were not netted against the debt as the senior credit did not close until October 28, 2015. Amortization of such fees were $725,165,
and $72,877, and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2016, transitional three months ended December 31, 2015, and the year ended September 30, 2015, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at the lower of cost or fair value. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Estimated Life

Machinery and equipment 6-8 years
Vehicles and trailers 7-10 years
Computer equipment and software 2-5 years
Product hardware and development 5-7 years

The estimated useful lives are based on the nature of the assets as well as current operating strategy and legal considerations such as contractual life. Future events, such as property
expansions, property developments, new competition, or new regulations, could result in a change in the manner in which the Company uses certain assets requiring a change in the
estimated useful lives of such assets.

Maintenance and repairs that neither materially add to the value of the asset nor appreciably prolong its life are charged to expense as incurred. Gains or losses on disposition of
property and equipment are included in the consolidated statements of operations.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES, continued
Valuation of Long-lived Assets

The Company evaluates its long-lived assets for impairment in accordance with related accounting standards. Assets to be held and used (including projects under development as
well as property and equipment), are reviewed for impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist. If an indicator of impairment exists, the Company first groups its assets with
other assets and liabilities at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities (the “asset group™). Secondly,
the Company estimates the undiscounted future cash flows that are directly associated with and expected to arise from the completion, use and eventual disposition of such asset
group. The Company estimates the undiscounted cash flows over the remaining useful life of the primary asset within the asset group. If the undiscounted cash flows exceed the
carrying value, no impairment is indicated. If the undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the carrying value, then an impairment is measured based on fair value compared to
carrying value, with fair value typically based on a discounted cash flow model. If an asset is still under development, future cash flows include remaining construction costs. There
were no impairments during the periods presented.

Income Taxes

The Company records income taxes under the asset and liability method, whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on the future tax consequences attributable
to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and attributable to operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards. Accounting standards regarding income taxes requires a reduction of the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance, if based on the
available evidence, it is more likely than not that such assets will not be realized. Accordingly, the need to establish valuation allowances for deferred tax assets is assessed at each
reporting period based on a “more likely than not” realization threshold. This assessment considers, among other matters, the nature, frequency and severity of current and
cumulative losses, forecasts of future profitability, the duration of statutory carryforward periods, the Company’s experience with operating loss and tax credit carryforwards not
expiring unused, and tax planning alternatives.

Significant judgment is required in evaluating the Company’s tax positions and determining its provision for income taxes. During the ordinary course of business, there are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Accounting standards regarding uncertainty in income taxes provides a two-step approach to
recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the
largest amount which is more than 50% likely, based solely on the technical merits, of being sustained on examinations. The Company considers many factors when evaluating and
estimating its tax positions and tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and which may not accurately anticipate actual outcomes.

F-12




FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES, continued
Equity

The Company applies the classification and measurement principles enumerated in Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 815 “Derivatives and Hedging” with respect to
accounting for its issuances of the preferred stock. The Company evaluates convertible preferred stock at each reporting date for appropriate balance sheet classification.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) standard related to fair value measurement at inception. The standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure of fair value measurements. The standard applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair
value measurements and, accordingly, does not require any new fair value measurements. The standard clarifies that fair value is an exit price, representing the amount that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be
determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. The recorded values of long-term debt approximate their fair values, as interest
approximates market rates. As a basis for considering such assumptions, the standard established a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair
value as follows:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: Unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data, which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions.
The Company’s financial instruments consist of accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and notes payable. The recorded values of accounts
receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses approximate fair values due to the short maturities of such instruments. Recorded values for notes payable and
related liabilities approximate fair values, since their amortization of deferred financing cost stated or imputed interest rates are commensurate with prevailing market rates for similar

obligations.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES, continued

Segment Reporting

The Company operates in the telecommunications infrastructure services industry and, effective May 8, 2014, entered the staffing industry. The Company has concluded that the
staffing business qualifies as a separate segment for the year ended December 31, 2016, the transitional three months ended December 31, 2015, and the year ended September 30,
2015, as such, the Company has reported segment results pursuant to ASC 280-10 “Segment Reporting” for the year ended December 31, 2016, the transitional three months ended
December 31, 2015, and the year ended September 30, 2015.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss (the numerator) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period (the denominator).
Diluted net loss per common share is computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted average number of common shares and potential common shares outstanding (if dilutive)
during each period. Potential common shares include convertible debt, warrants and preferred stock. The number of potential common shares outstanding relating to convertible
debt, warrants and preferred stock is computed using the treasury stock method. For the periods presented, potential dilutive securities had an anti-dilutive effect and were not
included in the calculation of diluted net loss per common share. Comparative data for the previous period has been adjusted to reflect the 1 for 20 reverse split effectuated May 26,
2016.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share from continuing operations:

For the Years/Three Months Ended

Year Ended December 31, Three Months Ended Year Ended September 30,
2016 December 31, 2015 2015
Numerator:
Net (loss) income $ (6,234,434) $ 546,171 $ (3,554,914)
Preferred stock dividends (79,561) (19,891) (79,561)
Net (loss) income attributable to common shareholders $ (6,313,995) 526,280 $ (3,634,475)
Denominator:
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic 64,770,155 2,319,311 2,127,222
Effect of dilutive securities:
Convertible preferred stock, Series A - - -
Convertible preferred stock, Series A-1 - - -
Convertible preferred stock, Series D - 91,062 -
Convertible preferred stock, Series F - 303,101 -
Total dilutive shares - 394,163 -
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - diluted 64,770,155 2,713,474 2,127,222
(Loss) Earnings per share:
Basic $ (0.10) $ 0.23 $ (1.71)
Diluted $ 0.10) § 0.19 $ (1.71)
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES, continued

Earnings (Loss) Per Share, continued

The following securities are excluded from the calculation of weighted average dilutive common shares because their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive:

Convertible preferred stock, Series A
Convertible preferred stock, Series A-1
Convertible preferred stock, Series D ]
Convertible preferred stock, Series F ]
Common stock warrants
Preferred stock warrants
Convertible debt

Total potentially dilutive shares

For the Years and Transitional Three Months Ended

Year Ended December 31, Transitional Three Months Year Ended September 30,
2016 December 31, 2015 2015

667,169 667,169 667,169

393,645 393,645 393,645

- 40,060,500 36,615,180

- 18,349,220 -

16,748,126 4,404,376 744,999

- - 39,396,800

- 200,000 200,000

17,808,940 64,074,910 78,017,793

U The Series D and Series F preferred shares are mandatorily convertible at a rate of 400 shares of common stock for each share of preferred stock upon (a) a sufficient increase
in the authorized common shares; and (b) a reverse split of the common shares. These shares mandatorily converted to common stock with the reverse split and increase in
authorized common shares effective May 26, 2016. All shares have been adjusted to reflect the effect of the reverse split.

Adbvertising

Advertising costs, if any, are expensed as incurred. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the transitional three months ended December 31, 2015, and the year ended September
30, 2015, respectively, the Company’s spending on advertising was not material.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified in order to conform to current year presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported results of operations
or loss per share. Comparative data for the previous period has also been adjusted to reflect the 1 for 20 reverse split effectuated May 26, 2016.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES, continued
Liquidity and Managements’ Plans

During the year ended December 31, 2016 the Company has incurred a net loss of $6.3 million and, in addition, the Company has working capital deficit of $3.4 million, which
includes approximately $2.2 million of liabilities for unpaid payroll taxes and the related penalties and interest. Management’s plans are to enter into an installment plan with the
IRS for the payment of the unpaid payroll taxes and to continue to raise additional funds through the sales of debt or equity securities until such time that operations generate
sufficient cash to operate the business. On October 28, 2015 the Company entered into an $8 million senior secured credit facility. Of the proceeds received, approximately $1.8
million was used to extinguish approximately $3.4 million of Company debt and $3.0 million was deposited into a restricted Company bank account which requires Lateral’s
approval to utilize. On April 20, 2017, in conjunction with the acquisition of Benchmark Builders Inc, Lateral amended its existing credit facility to provide for approximately $10.1
million towards the cash purchase price, and extending the maturity date of the existing credit facility to March 31, 2019. Additionally, the Company, in conjunction with the
Benchmark acquisition, took on approximately $50 million dollars of debt, $12,500,000 which matures on April 20, 2019, $30,000,000 which matures on April 20, 2020, and
$7,500,000 which matures on October 20, 2018. With Benchmark’s 2016 annual revenues of $386 million and a backlog as of December 31, 2016 of $259 million, combined with
the Company’s backlog as of December 31, 2016 of $45.5 million, the Company believes that it has the ability to support this additional debt and fund all current operations.
However, if needed, there is no assurance that additional financing will be available or that management will be able to obtain and close financing on terms acceptable to the
Company, enter into an acceptable installment plan with the IRS, which is scheduled to be presented in the third quarter of 2017, or whether the Company will become profitable
and generate positive operating cash flow. If the Company is unable to raise sufficient additional funds or generate positive operating cash flow, it will have to develop and
implement a plan to further extend payables and reduce overhead until sufficient additional capital is raised to support further operations. There can be no assurance that such a plan
will be successful.

Recent Acc ing Pr t

In January 2017, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2017-04: “Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment”
(“ASU 2017-04), which removes Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. It is effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is
permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment test performed with a measurement date after January 1, 2017. The Company does not expect this new guidance to have a
material impact on its financial position or results of operations.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-01 “Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business”, which clarifies the definition of a business to assist
entities with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions or disposals of assets or businesses. The standard introduces a screen for determining when
assets acquired are not a business and clarifies that a business must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that contribute to an output to be considered a business.
This standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within that reporting period. The Company is currently evaluating the
standard to determine the impact of its adoption on the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18 “Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force,” which clarifies
the presentation requirements of restricted cash within the statement of cash flows. The changes in restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents during the period should be
included in the beginning and ending cash and cash equivalents balance reconciliation on the statement of cash flows. When cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash or restricted cash
equivalents are presented in more than one line item within the statement of financial position, an entity shall calculate a total cash amount in a narrative or tabular format that agrees
to the amount shown on the statement of cash flows. Details on the nature and amounts of restricted cash should also be disclosed. This standard is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within that reporting period. The Company does not expect this new guidance to have a material impact on its
financial position or results of operations.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, “Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments.” ASU No. 2016-15
clarifies and provides specific guidance on eight cash flow classification issues that are not currently addressed by current GAAP and thereby reduce the current diversity in practice.
ASU No. 2016-15 is effective for public business entities for annual periods, including interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2017, with early
application permitted. This guidance is applicable to the Company’s fiscal year beginning January 1, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the standard to determine the
impact of its adoption on the consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, “Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting” (“ASU
2016-09”). The standard is intended to simplify several areas of accounting for share-based compensation arrangements, including the income tax impact, classification on the
statement of cash flows and forfeitures. ASU 2016-09 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2016, which for the
Company will commence with the year beginning January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted commencing January 1, 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the standard to
determine the impact of its adoption on the consolidated financial statements.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2016-02, “Leases (Topic 842)” (“ASU 2016-02”). The standard requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities
on the balance sheet for leases with lease terms greater than 12 months. The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, which for the
Company will commence with the year beginning January 1, 2019, with early application permitted. The adoption will require a modified retrospective approach for leases that exist
or are entered into after the beginning of the earliest period presented. The Company is currently evaluating the standard to determine the impact of the adoption on the consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update 2015-17, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes” (“ASU 2015-07”), an
update to accounting guidance to simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes. The guidance requires an entity to classify all deferred tax liabilities and assets, along with any
valuation allowance, as noncurrent in the balance sheet. The guidance is effective for public companies with annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including
interim periods within that reporting period. Early application is permitted. The Company has elected to early adopt ASU 2015-17 during the year ended December 31, 2015 with
retrospective application. The adoption of ASU 2015-17 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, “Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern”. ASU 2014-15 is intended to define

management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an organization’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures.
For all entities, the ASU is effective for annual periods ending after December 15, 2016 and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016. Early
adoption is permitted. The Company adopted this standard for the year ended December 31, 2016. The adoption of these amendments did not have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)” (“ASU 2014-097). ASU 2014-09 supersedes the revenue recognition
requirements in ASC Topic 605, “Revenue Recognition” and some cost guidance included in ASC Subtopic 605-35, “Revenue Recognition - Construction-Type and Production-
Type Contracts.” The core principle of ASU 2014-09 is that revenue is recognized when the transfer of goods or services to customers occurs in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. ASU 2014-09 requires the disclosure of sufficient information to enable readers
of the Company’s financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts. ASU 2014-09 also
requires disclosure of information regarding significant judgments and changes in judgments, and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. ASU 2014-09
provides two methods of retrospective application. The first method would require the Company to apply ASU 2014-09 to each prior reporting period presented. The second method
would require the Company to retrospectively apply ASU 2014-09 with the cumulative effect recognized at the date of initial application. ASU 2014-09 will be effective for the
Company beginning in fiscal 2019 as a result of ASU 2015-14, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date,” which was issued by the
FASB in August 2015 and extended the original effective date by one year. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the available methodologies of ASU 2014-
09 and 2015-14 upon its financial statements in future reporting periods. The Company has not yet selected a transition method. The Company is in the process of evaluating the
new standard against its existing accounting policies, including the timing of revenue recognition, and its contracts with customers to determine the effect the guidance will have on
its financial statements and what changes to systems and controls may be warranted.

There have been four new ASUs issued amending certain aspects of ASU 2014-09, ASU 2016-08, “Principal versus Agent Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross Versus Net),”

was issued in March, 2016 to clarify certain aspects of the principal versus agent guidance in ASU 2014-09. In addition, ASU 2016-10, “Identifying Performance Obligations and
Licensing,” issued in April 2016, amends other sections of ASU 2014-09 including clarifying guidance related to identifying performance obligations and licensing implementation.
ASU 2016-12, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Narrow Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients” provides amendments and practical expedients to the guidance in
ASU 2014-09 in the areas of assessing collectability, presentation of sales taxes received from customers, noncash consideration, contract modification and clarification of using the
full retrospective approach to adopt ASU 2014-09. Finally, ASU 2016-20, “Technical Corrections and Improvements to Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,” was

issued in December 2016, and provides elections regarding the disclosures required for remaining performance obligations in certain cases and also makes other technical corrections
and improvements to the standard. With its evaluation of the impact of ASU 2014-09, the Company will also consider the impact on its financial statements related to the updated
guidance provided by these four new ASUs.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES, continued

Pr continued

5

Recent Acc

In April 7, 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, “Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs”. the FASB issued
an Accounting Standard Update relating to simplifying the presentation of debt issuance costs. The amendments in this update require that debt issuance costs related to a
recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The adoption of this
has been applied retrospectively, and accordingly, the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and September 30, 2015 have been
reclassified to reflect this adoption. The impact of this reclassification was a decrease of $619,830 to our senior debt as of December 31, 2016 and $801,640 as of December 31,
2015, and a corresponding elimination of Deferred financing costs as a separate financial statement line item. Deferred financing costs, $140,000 as of September 30, 2015, was

carried as a prepaid expense as the new senior debt was not entered into until October 28, 2015.

3. RESTRICTED CASH ACCOUNT

The restricted cash account was created to deposit the unused proceeds from the Company’s new senior debt (Note 8. Senior Debt). The funds were kept at a bank in an account
segregated from our main operating account. The Company did not have direct access to or control over the funds held in this account. The funds were disbursed to the Company

upon approval of the lender. These balances were $0 as of December 31, 2016, $3,003,226 as of December 31, 2015, and $0 as of September 30, 2015.

4. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consist of the following:

Other receivables, net
Prepaid contract costs for work in process
Prepaid operating expenses

Other receivables are presented net of an allowance of $150,000, $150,000 and $772,798 for uncollectible amounts at December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015, and September 30,

2015, respectively.
5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment consist of the following:

Machinery and equipment
Vehicles and trailers

Network Services Platform
Computer equipment and software

Less: accumulated depreciation

The Company has begun the development of a new network infrastructure services platform, which upon completion, intends market and implement to customers, in the production

For Year Ended
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015
$ 1,232,555 $ 1,232,555 $ 669,198
409,038 623,798 593,711
1,191,718 191,253 789,674
$ 2,833,311 $ 2,047,606 $ 2,052,583

For Year Ended
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015

$ 1,596,068 $ 1,180,344 $ 496,543
1,925,181 1,475,237 1,009,004

433,912 - -

325,271 186,763 114,642

4,280,432 2,842,344 1,620,189
(813,913) (297,847) (201,149)

$ 3,466,519 $ 2,544,497 $ 1,419,040

of revenue. As of December 31, 2016, the capitalized cost of this new system is $433,912, and is not being depreciated as it is still work in progress.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET, continued

The Company leases various equipment under capital leases. Assets held under capital leases are included in property and equipment as follows:

For Year Ended
December 31, December 31, September 30,
2016 2015 2015
Machinery & equipment $ 1,412,709 $ 1,030,733 $ 352,157
Less: accumulated depreciation (231,406) (44,424) (11,108)
$ 1,181303  § 986,309  $ 341,049

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2016, transitional three months ended December 31, 2016, and year ended September 30, 2015 was $516,066, $96,698, and
$108,324, respectively.

6. FACTORING AGREEMENT
AmeriFactors Financial Group

On May 12, 2014, the Company entered into an exclusive Factoring Agreement (“the AmeriFactors Agreement”) with AmeriFactors Financial Group, LLC (AmeriFactors). The one
year agreement between the Company and AmeriFactors provided for AmeriFactors to purchase up to $7,000,000 of the Company’s qualified net accounts receivable during the term
of the AmeriFactors Agreement, and was renewable on a year to year basis. Unpaid accounts receivable purchased by AmeriFactors could not exceed $3,000,000 at any time. Under
the terms of the AmeriFactors Agreement, the Company received 85% of the net sale amount up front, plus additional conditional consideration upon the collection of the receivable.
The AmeriFactors Agreement automatically renewed on May 12, 2015.

The Company’s accounts receivable were purchased by AmeriFactors on a recourse basis. Certain officers of the Company provided personal guarantees.

As of September 30, 2015, under the AmeriFactors Agreement, the Company had factored receivables in the amount of $706,534 and recorded a liability of $600,554. Discounts
provided and interest charged related to factoring of the accounts receivable have been expensed on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as interest expense. The
Amerifactors Agreement was cancelled in October 2015 in connection with the inception of the new credit facility.

Gibraltar Business Capital

On October 6, 2014, the Company entered into an exclusive Factoring Agreement (“the Gibraltar Agreement”) with Gibraltar Business Capital, LLC (Gibraltar). The initial term of
the Gibraltar Agreement was one year, and was renewable on a year to year basis. Unpaid accounts receivable purchased by Gibraltar could not exceed $250,000 at any time. Under
the terms of the Gibraltar Agreement, the Company received on a recourse basis up to 85% of the net sale amount up front. There were no factored receivables related to the Gibraltar
Agreement as of September 30, 2015, December 31, 2015, and December 31, 2016. The Company never factored any receivables with Gibraltar. The Gibraltar Agreement was not
renewed in October 2015.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. NOTES PAYABLE

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015

Vendors Notes (Unsecured)
Long term vendor Notes (“Vendor Notes”) issued to settle litigation
bearing interest rates between 0% and 6% per annum. Terms range from 1
to 48 months. $ 1,336,517 $ 491,000 $ 383,970
Senior Secured Notes
Senior secured notes issued between October 2011 and January 2012,
secured by the assets of the Company, at a stated interest rate of 15%.
The senior notes were settled for cash at an approximate rate of $.50 for
$1.00. Of the original senior debt balance of $3,550,012, $1,757,731 was
paid in cash, resulting in a remaining principal balance of $1,792,281,
plus accrued interest payable in the amount of $1,748,380. The remaining
principal balance and all of the accrued interest were recognized as a one-
time gain of $3,431,533, net of associated costs of $109,124. - - 3,550,012
Other Notes Payable
Notes payable bearing interest at a stated rate of 12% and a 4% PIK per
annum. Term is for 7 months. 5,094,116 - -
Less: Deferred financing cost (926,343) = =
Total other note payable, net 4,167,773 - -
Notes Payable bearing interest at a stated rate between 10% and 12% per
annum. Terms range from 1 to 12 months 2,000,000 709,000 709,000
Equipment Notes
Obligations under capital leases, bearing interest rates between 4.1% and
8.2% per annum, secured by equipment having a value that approximates
the debt value. Terms range from 48 to 60 months. 960,549 960,205 339,583
Various Equipment notes, bearing interest rates between 2% and 41% per
annum, secured by equipment having a value that approximates the debt
value. Terms range from 36 to 72 months 1,508,758 1,298,978 884,108
Total Notes Payables 9,973,597 3,459,183 5,866,673
Less: Current portion (7,611,335) (1,887,120) (1,295,271)
Total Notes non-current portion $ 2,362,262 $ 1,572,063 $ 4,571,402
Senior Debt Disclosure
On October 28, 2015 the Company entered into a credit agreement,
pursuant to which the Company received $8,000,000. The funds were
disbursed as follow $6,000,000 and $2,000,000 on October 28, 2015 and
November 11, 2015 respectively. The interest rate used is 12% per
annum, also required to make 4% PIK payments, which is booked
monthly as an increase to the senior debt balance. $ 8,378,512 $ 8,048,682 $
Less: Original issue discount (182,242) (400,932) -
Less: Deferred financing cost (619,830) (801,640) -
Total Senior Debt, non-current portion $ 7,576,440 $ 6,846,110 $ -
The required principal payments for all borrowings for each of the five years following the balance sheet date are as follows:
2017 8,357,143
2018 963,176
2019 9,341,899
2020 512,551
2021 238,381
Thereafter 63,614

Total 19,476,764




8. SENIOR DEBT

On October 28, 2015, the Company, through its main operating entity Jus-Com, Inc. entered into an $8 million dollar senior credit facility. The facility has a two year term, and calls
for interest payments in the amount of 12%, paid quarterly in arrears. Additionally, there is a “payment in kind” (PIK) provision which calls for a 4% per annum increase in the
principal balance monthly. The facility is a senior credit facility, and is secured by principally all assets of the Company. The uses of the senior facility are to retire the existing senior
debt and related accrued interest through a tender offer, retire the factoring line of credit, pay certain senior loan closing costs, settle certain pending litigation, and provide working
capital to the Company. A “blocked” bank deposit account, controlled by the lender, was also initially established in the amount of $3,000,000 to be held for future advances. (See
restricted cash, note 3). The Company is prohibited from an early payoff of the facility until October 28, 2017. There are several affirmative and negative covenants the Company must
comply with, such as minimum bank account balances, minimum EDITDA thresholds, capital expenditures, leverage ratio, and debt service coverage ratio. As a condition of the
facility, the Company issued 163,441 shares of its Series D preferred stock and 391,903 shares of its Series F preferred stock to the lender. As a result of a market valuation performed
on this transaction by a qualified third party valuation firm, an original issue discount of $437,380 was determined, which will be amortized on a straight line method, which
approximates the interest rate method, over a twenty four month period to interest expense. During the period ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, $249,018 and
$72,877 was included in amortization of debt discount, respectively, and $236,914 remained unamortized as of December 31, 2016. On April 5, 2016, the Company entered into an
amendment agreement to its existing credit facility with Lateral, amending the original credit agreement signed October 28, 2015. The agreement amends select provisions of the
original credit agreement, including equity raises and changes to certain financial and operational covenants. On September 30, 2016, the Company entered into a second amendment
agreement to its existing credit facility, maturing October 28, 2017, amending the original credit agreement signed October 28, 2015. The agreement was amended solely to consolidate
a series of short term bridge loans granted to the company from time to time during the second and third quarter of 2016 into a $2.5 million loan, which matures on April 30, 2017. The
second amendment also amended the covenants related to consolidated EBITDA consolidated leverage, consolidated debt service, SG&A expenses, and compensation expense. On
April 20, 2017, in conjunction with the acquisition of Benchmark Builders Inc, Lateral amended its existing credit facility to provide for approximately $10.1 million towards the cash
purchase price, combining this new advance with the existing debt, extending the maturity date of the combined facility to March 31, 2019.

9. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015, Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities were comprised of the following:

For Years Ended
December 31, December 31, September 30,
2016 2015 2015

Accrued note interest payable [1] $ 364,805 $ 817,452  § 2,030,745
Accrued dividends payable 530,694 451,133 431,243
Accrued compensation expense [2] 2,299,738 2,015,277 1,731,385
Other accrued expense 6,868 295,083 458,173

Total 3,202,105 3,578,945 4,651,546

Less: current portion (3,202,105) (3,578,945) (2,965,290)

Accrued expenses, non-current $ - $ - $ 1,686,256

[1] Accrued interest payable includes approximately $300,000 of estimated penalties and interest associated with the unpaid payroll taxes as of December 31, 2016, December 31,
2015, and September 30, 2015 respectively.

[2] Accrued compensation expense includes $1,863,031, $1,863,031 and $1,512,415 of unpaid payroll taxes related for the periods ended December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and
September 30, 2015, respectively.

Accrued interest, non-current portion represents interest payable related to the senior secured notes that was forgiven during the transitional period ended December 31, 2015, and is
classified as non-current liability pursuant to the provisions of ASC 470-10.
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10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Guarantees/Related Party Advances

From October 1, 2014 through December 31, 2016, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) provided cash advances witnessed by an interest bearing note, and from time to time, advances
for the Company’s behalf on credit cards the CEO is personally liable for, aggregating $503,856. Additionally, the Company entered into several secured equipment financing
arrangements with total obligations of approximately $298,000 as of December 31, 2016 that required the guaranty of a Company officer, which was provided by the CEO.

The Chief Financial Officer personally guaranteed several secured equipment financing arrangements with total obligations of approximately $320,525 as of December 31, 2016.
Additionally, the Chief Financial Officer provided a personal credit card account for the purchase of goods and services by FTE. While the credit card balances are reflected in the
Company’s books and records, the CFO is personally liable for the payment of the entire amount of the open credit obligation, which was $57,525 as of December 31, 2016.

Property Lease Obligations

On October 1, 2015, the Company entered into a three year lease for 4,500 square feet of warehouse space in Naples, FL, at a monthly rent of $4,500.

On October 13, 2015, the Company entered into a seven year lease, commencing December 1, 2015, for 5,377 square feet of office space in Naples, FL, at a monthly rent of $27,158.

On November 1, 2015, the Company entered into a one year lease for 4,000 square feet of office and warehouse space in Marysville, WA, at a monthly rent of $3,000. That lease
expired October 31, 2016 and was not renewed.

On January 1, 2016, the Company renewed its lease for 4,000 square feet of office space in Indianapolis, IN for three years, at a monthly rent of $2,700.

On March 1, 2016, the Company entered into a two year lease for 5,000 square feet of office and warehouse space in Des Moines, IA, at a monthly rent of $2,000.
On March 1, 2016, the Company entered into a one year lease for 4,000 square feet of office and warehouse space in Springfield, MO, at a monthly rent of $2,400.
On May 1, 2016, the Company entered into a three year lease for 8,640 square feet of office and warehouse space in Dallas, TX, at a monthly rent of $4,500.

On December 1, 2016, the Company entered into a three year lease for 3,000 square feet of office and warehouse space in Dallas, TX, at a monthly rent of $4,000.

The remaining aggregate commitment for lease payments under the operating lease for the facilities as of December 31, 2016 are as follows:

2017 $ 479,266
2018 450,103
2019 367,380
2020 328,757
2021 334,134
Thereafter 131,195
Total Lease Obligations $ 2,090,835

Rental expense, resulting from property lease agreements, for the year ended December 31, 2016, the transitional three months ended December 31, 2015, and the year ended
September 30, 2015, was $591,405, $148,555, and $181,895, respectively.
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Employment Agreements

On June 13, 2014, FTE Networks entered into an employment agreement with Michael Palleschi whereby Mr. Palleschi agreed to serve as our Chief Executive Officer in consideration
of a salary of $250,000 per year, with standard employee insurance and other benefits. The employment agreement commenced on June 13, 2014 and ends on June 13, 2017, after
which it is renewable on a year to year basis, until terminated by either party with 30 days written notice. On October 26, 2015 the employment agreement was amended to extend the
term of Mr. Palleschi’s employment through June 13, 2019.

Effective September 27, 2016, the Company entered into an employment agreement with Lynn Martin to serve as the Company’s Chief Operating Officer in consideration of a salary
of $250,000 per year, with standard employee insurance and benefits. The employment agreement commenced on May 16, 2016, and expires on May 16, 2019.

Accrued Litigation Expense
Legal Matters - The Company is involved in litigation claims arising in the ordinary course of business. Legal fees and other costs associated with such actions are expensed as
incurred. In addition, the Company assesses, in conjunction with its legal counsel, the need to record a liability for litigation and contingencies. The Company reserves for costs
relating to these matters when a loss is probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. As of September 30, 2015, the Company had reserved an aggregate of $1,840,891 in
Accrued Litigation Costs for legal matters. On December 28, 2016, the Company reached a settlement agreement on the Enterprise FM Trust/EAN Services LLC et al litigation, in
which the indemnification against certain companies under an Asset Purchase Agreement dated June 19, 2013 was reached, resulting in a dismissal of the lawsuits, and net cash to the
Company of $19,000. Because of this settlement, the liability for litigation and contingencies was reversed, and as of December 31, 2016, the reserve for litigation and contingencies
was $0.
Roadsafe Traffic Systems, Inc. v. Focus Fiber Solutions, LLC, et al vs. Zayo Group.

Complaint filed February 10, 2014 in the State of Arizona, Maricopa County, Docket No.: CV2014-090231.

Plaintiff Roadsafe Traffic Systems, Inc., a services vendor, made breach of contract and other claims against defendants Focus Fiber Solutions, LLC, and Zayo Bandwidth, LLC.

Relief sought is approximately $139,932.

This claim is subject to indemnification from ProFiber Solutions, LLC and MDT Labor, LLC under the Asset Purchase Agreement and related documents dated June 19, 2013. This
matter was settled on December 28, 2016 as described above.

Enterprise FM Trust v. Focus Venture Partners, Inc., et al,
Complaint filed December 12, 2013, District Court of Tulsa, Oklahoma, Docket No. CJ 2013-05647.
Plaintiff Enterprise FM Trust, a vendor, made breach of contract claims against Defendant Focus Venture Partners, Inc.
Primary relief sought approximately $118,869 in principal. Consent judgment against Focus Venture Partners, Inc. in the amount of $153,043.

This claim is subject to indemnification from ProFiber Solutions, LLC and MDT Labor, LLC under the Asset Purchase Agreement and related documents dated June 19, 2013. This
matter was settled on December 28, 2016 as described above.

EAN Services, LLC v. Focus Fiber Solutions, LLC, et al,

Complaint filed December 4, 2013 District Court of Tulsa, Oklahoma, Docket No. CJ 2013-05529.

Plaintiff Enterprise FM Trust, a vendor, made breach of contract claims against Defendant Focus Fiber Solutions, LLC.

Primary relief sought is approximately $819,425 in principal. Consent judgment against Focus Fiber Solutions, LLC in the amount of $1,042,796.

This claim is subject to indemnification from ProFiber Solutions, LLC and MDT Labor, LLC under the Asset Purchase Agreement and related documents dated June 19, 2013. See
FTE Networks, Inc., et al v. ProFiber Solutions, LLC, MDT Labor, LLC et al. This matter was settled December 28, 2016 as described above.

FTE Networks, Inc., et al v. ProFiber Solutions, LLC, MDT Labor, LL.C et al

Praccipe to Issue Writ of Summons filed June 18, 2015, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Philadelphia County, CCP June 2015 Term, Case No. 00255.

Plaintiffs FTE Networks, Inc., formerly d/b/a Beacon Enterprise Solutions Group, LLC, Focus Fiber Solutions, LLC, Jus-Com, Inc., Focus Wireless, LLC, Optos Capital Partners,
LLC, and Focus Venture Partners, Inc. filed against ProFiber Solutions, LLC, MDT Labor, LLC, and others for various matters relating to indemnification including but not limited
to the following cases: Roadsafe Traffic Systems, Inc. v. Focus Fiber Solutions, LLC, et al vs. Zayo Group, Enterprise FM Trust v. Focus Venture Partners, Inc., et al, and EAN
Services, LLC v. Focus Fiber Solutions, LLC, et al and Primus Electric Corporation v. Focus Fiber Solutions, LLC. This matter was settled December 28, 2016 as described above.
Michael Martin and Paris Arey vs. Beacon Enterprise Solutions Group, Inc. and MDT Labor, LLC, et al.

Complaint filed October 19, 2012 (amended November 6, 2013) in Jefferson Circuit County, Kentucky Circuit, Docket No. 12CI-05572.

Plaintiffs Michael L. Martin and Paris G. Arey are former employees of Beacon Enterprise Solutions Group, Inc. and MDT Labor, LLC d/b/a MDT Technical. Bruce Widener, and
Michael Traina, former officers of said companies, are also defendants. Plaintiffs’ claims are primarily for severance and change in control bonuses under certain employment

agreements. The case is being defended by the Company’s D&O insurance carrier, with reservations.

Primary relief sought: $190,000 under the severance claims and $380,000 under the change of control claims. Settled November 2015: $150,000 cash, $250,000 Note, 512,000 Shares
of Common Stock.

Shorewood Packaging, LLC v. Optos Capital Partners, LLC.
Complaint filed October 2, 2013 in Superior Court of New Jersey, Law Division, Bergen County, Docket No. BER-L-7469-13.

Plaintiff Shorewood Packaging, LLC is a landlord for a commercial property located in New Jersey with claims for damages against Optos Capital Partners, LLC, the guarantor for
tenant, Focus Wireless, LLC, relative to a breach of lease agreement.

Primary relief sought approximately $280,000. Settled: October 2015: $75,000.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. INCOME TAXES

The Company files a consolidated U.S. federal income tax return and various state tax returns.

The following summarizes the income tax provision (benefit):

Current:
Federal
State and local
Utilization of fully reserved net operating losses

Deferred:
Federal
State and local

Change in valuation allowance
Income tax provision (benefit)

The Company has the following net deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards
Accruals
Other - reserves
Deferred tax assets, gross
Property and equipment
Sub-total
Valuation allowance

Deferred tax assets, net

For The Years/ Transitional Three Months Ended

As Of Transitional Three Months As As Of
December 31, 2016 Of December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015
- $ R R
1,901,847 (196,481) (1,186,733)
55,937 (5,779) 98,834
1,957,784 (202,260) (1,087,899)
(1,957,784) 202,260 1,087,899
For The Years/Transitional Three Months Ended
As Of Transitional Three Months As As Of
December 31, 2016 Of December 31, 2015 September 30, 2015
4,936,966 $ 1,870,583 1,445,277
800,443 1,425,039 2,007,371
52,500 301,631 301,631
5,789,909 3,597,253 3,754,279
(507,728) (272,856) (192,219)
5,282,181 3,324,397 3,562,060
(5,282,181) (3,324,397) (3,562,060)
- $ - -
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. INCOME TAXES, continued
The reconciliation of the expected tax expense (benefit), based on statutory rates, with the actual expense, is as follows:

For The Years/Transitional Three Months Ended

Transitional
Year Ended Three Months Ended December Year Ended
December 31, 2016 31,2015 September 30, 2015
Expected federal statutory rate 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State tax rate, net of federal benefit 1.0% 1.0% 3.1%
Permanent differences - meals & entertainment 3.5)% 2.0% 0.8%
Change in valuation allowance (31.5)% (37.0)% (37.9%
Income tax provision (benefit) 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

For the year ended December 31, 2016, transitional three months ended December 31, 2015, and year ended September 30, 2015, the Company had approximately $14.1 million, $5.3
million and $4.1 million of federal and state net operating loss carryovers (“NOLs”), respectively, which begin to expire in 2032. However, the Company has not yet filed its tax
returns for its fiscal years ended September 30, 2013, September 30, 2014, September 30, 2015, September 30, 2016 or for December 31, 2016. Therefore, the Company’s NOLs will
not be available to offset future taxable income, if any, until the returns are filed. These NOLs are subject to annual limitations under Internal Revenue Code Section 382 if there is a
greater than 50% ownership change. In addition, Beacon had generated approximately $25 million of NOLs prior to the Beacon Merger, which the Company’s preliminary analysis
indicates would be subject to significant limitations pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 382, such that no deferred tax asset has been reflected herein related to the Beacon
NOLs.

The Company, after considering all available evidence, fully reserved its deferred tax assets since it is more likely than not that such benefits will not be realized in future periods. The
Company will continue to evaluate its deferred tax assets to determine whether any changes in circumstances could affect the realization of their future benefit. If it is determined in
future periods that portions of the Company’s deferred tax assets satisfy the realization standards, the valuation allowance will be reduced accordingly. During the year ended
December 31, 2016, the transitional three months ended December 31, 2015, and the year ended September 30, 2015, the valuation allowance increased by $1,957,784, decreased by
$202,260, and decreased by $1,087,899, respectively.

During the period of September 30, 2014 through December 31, 2016, the Company operated primarily in Nevada, North Carolina, Colorado, Texas, lowa, Washington, Missouri,
Georgia, and New York. If the Company is required to pay income taxes or penalties in the future, penalties will be recorded in general and administrative expenses and interest will be
separately stated as interest expense. The Company has not yet filed its tax returns for its fiscal years ended September 30, 2012, September 30, 2013, September 30, 2014, September
30, 2015, September 30, 2016 or for December 31, 2016, but has engaged a tax professional to begin to compile the past due returns. The Company’s tax returns for the periods from
October 1, 2012 through December 31, 2016 remain subject to examination and may be subject to penalties for late filing.

The Company does not have any uncertain tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits will increase or decrease within 12
months of December 31, 2016. The unrecognized tax benefits may increase or change during the next year for items that arise in the ordinary course of business.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Authorized Capital

FTE is currently authorized to issue up to 200,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, and 5,000,000 shares of convertible preferred stock, par value $0.01 per
share, of which the following series have been designated: 4,500 shares of Series A, 1,000 shares of Series A-1, 4,000 shares of Series B, 400 shares of Series C-1, 2,000 shares of
Series C-2, 110 shares of Series C-3, and 2,000,000 shares of Series D, and 1,980,000 of Series F.

Common Stock

The Company is presently authorized to issue up to 200,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value per share, of which 89,126,752, 2,319,524, and 2,226.877 shares of
common stock are presently issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015, respectively. The holders of the Company’s common
stock are entitled to receive dividends equally when, as and if declared by the board of directors, out of funds legally available therefor.

The holders of the Company’s common stock have sole voting rights, one vote for each share held of record, and are entitled upon liquidation of the Company to share ratably in the
net assets of the Company available for distribution after payment of all obligations of the Company and after provision has been made with respect to each class of stock, if any,
having preference over the common stock, currently including the Company’s preferred stock. The shares of common stock are not redeemable and have no preemptive or similar
rights. All outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock are validly issued, fully paid for and non-assessable.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY, continued
Common Stock Transactions

On April 17, 2015, the Company issued 255,778 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $51,156 to eighty-two (82) Senior Secured Note holders as an incentive for
executing amended forbearance agreements on their respective notes.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 the Company issued 5,029,000 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $2,569,800 to several employees under the
terms of their employment agreements, of which $2,305,040 remains unvested.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 3,809,389 shares of its common stock to with a grant date value of $1,798,438 settle debt.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 841,500 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $445,800 to consultants for services performed
for the Company.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 7,594,999 shares of its common stock to individual investors for an equity raise totaling $2,628,000,

Since inception, the Company has not paid any cash dividends on its common stock.

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue a total of 5,000,000 shares of convertible preferred stock with such designations, rights, preferences and/or limitations as may be determined by
the Board, and as expressed in a resolution thereof. Each share of Series D and Series F Preferred stock is (a) entitled to vote alongside the common stockholders and has 20 votes;
and (b) is mandatorily convertible into 400 shares of common stock (equal to 20 shares of common stock on a post-split basis) upon an increase in the number of common shares
authorized, and the implementation of a 1-for-20 reverse stock split.

Dividend charges recorded during the years ended December 31, 2016, the three months ended December 31, 2015 and the year ended September 30, 2015 are as follows:

For The Years/Three Months Ended
Transitional Three

Year Ended Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, September 30,
2016 2015 2015

Series

A $ 50,038 $ 12,510 $ 50,038
A-1 29,523 7,381 29,523
B - - -
C-1 - - -
C-2 - - -
C-3 - - -
Total $ 79,561 $ 19,891 $ 79,561




FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY, continued
Preferred Stock, continued

Accrued dividends payable at December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015 are comprised of the following:

As Of
December 31, December 31, September 30,
2016 2015 2015
Series
A $ 304,129 259,646 $ 247,136
A-1 226,565 191,487 184,107
B - - -
C-1 - - -
C-2 - - -
C-3 - - -
Total $ 530,694 $ 451,133  § 431,243

Series A and Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company has designated 4,500 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series A”) and 1,000 shares of Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series A-17), of which
500 and 295 shares, respectively, are currently issued and outstanding. Holders of the Series A and Series A-1 are entitled to receive contractual cumulative dividends in preference to
any dividend on the common stock at the rate of 10% per annum on the initial investment amount commencing on the date of issue. Such dividends are payable on January 1, April 1,
July 1 and October 1 of each year, upon the declaration of payment by the Board of Directors.

The Series A and Series A-1 shares also contain a right of redemption in the event of liquidation or a change in control. The redemption feature provides for payment of a liquidation
fee of 110% of the face value of the Series A shares and 125% of the face value of the series A-1 shares plus any accrued unpaid dividends in the event of bankruptcy, change of
control, or any actions to take the Company private.

Series B Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company has designated 4,000 shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series B”), of which 0 shares are currently issued and outstanding. Holders of Series B are
entitled to receive contractual cumulative dividends in preference to any dividend on the common stock (but subject to the rights of the previously issued series of preferred stock) at
the rate of 6% per annum on the initial investment amount, commencing on the date of issue. Such dividends are payable on January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1 of each year
upon the declaration of payment by the Board of Directors. The Series B shares also contain a right of redemption in the event of liquidation or a change in control. The redemption
feature provides for payment of a liquidation fee of 125% of the face value plus any accrued unpaid dividends in the event of bankruptcy, change of control, or any actions to take the
Company private. There are no shares of Series B currently issued or outstanding.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY, continued
Preferred Stock, continued
Series C-1, Series C-2 and Series C-3 Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company has designated 400, 2,000 and 110 shares of Series C-1 Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series C-17), Series C-2 Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series C-2”) and Series
C-3 Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series C-3), respectively. There are no shares of Series C-1, Series C-2 or Series C-3 currently issued or outstanding.

Holders of Series C-1, C-2 and C-3 would be entitled to receive contractual cumulative dividends in preference to any dividend on the common stock (but subject to the rights of the
previously issued series of preferred stock) at the rate of 6% per annum on the initial investment amount, commencing on the date of issue. Such dividends would be payable on
January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1 of each year upon the declaration of payment by the Board of Directors.

Series D Convertible Preferred Stock

The Company has designated 2,000,000 shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series D), of which 0, 1,980,000 and 1,830,759 shares are currently issued and outstanding
as of December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015. Each share of Series D was mandatorily converted to 20 shares of common stock after the effect of a 1-for-20

reverse stock split which occurred on May 26, 2016.

Upon the declaration or distribution of any dividend to holders of common stock, holders of Series D are entitled to receive dividends equal to the amount of dividend that would have
been payable to the holder had such holder converted the Series D to common on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to the distribution.

Series F' Convertible Preferred Stock
The Company has designated 1,980,000 shares of Series F Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series F”), of which 0, 525,558, and 0 shares are currently issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015, and September 30, 2015, respectively. Each share of Series F was mandatorily converted to 20 shares of common stock after the effect of a

1-for-20 reverse stock split which occurred on May 26, 2016.

Upon the declaration or distribution of any dividend to holders of common stock, holders of Series F are entitled to receive dividends equal to the amount of dividend that would have
been payable to the holder had such holder converted the Series F to common on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to the distribution.

Preferred Stock Transactions
Non-cash preferred stock transactions were valued consistent with the valuations observed in cash transactions.

During the year ended September 30, 2015, the Company issued 195,918 shares of Series D preferred stock to an investor for aggregate gross proceeds of $783,672, which resulted in
aggregate net proceeds of $430,683 used to pay accounts payable on behalf of the Company, after deducting a subscription receivable of $352,989.

On January 16, 2015, the Company granted 12,500 shares of its Series D preferred stock with a grant date value of $50,000, to an existing noteholder as incentive for forbearance on
the note.
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY, continued

On May 1, 2015, the Company issued 12,500 shares of its Series D preferred stock with a grant date value of $50,000 in settlement of lease termination costs.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, the Company expensed the value of 118,332 shares of Series D preferred stock issued to vendors and others in recognition of favorable
payments terms that were extended to the Company and recorded $473,328 of stock based compensation. The Company cancelled 201,672 shares of preferred stock that were
previously issued where the parties never reached agreement on the issuance terms.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 285,664 shares of its Preferred Series F stock with a grant date value of $35,186 to one of its investors as an
incentive to continue raising equity proceeds.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the Company issued 231,041 shares of its Preferred Series F stock to its independent directors and two officers with a grant date
value of $152,487 for compensation.

During the years ended December 31, 2016 and September 30, 2015, the Company accrued an additional $79,560 and $79,561 of preferred stock dividends, respectively.

Warrants and Derivative Warrant Liability

The Company accounts for common stock warrants as either equity instruments or derivative liabilities depending on the specific terms of the warrant agreement. Stock warrants are
accounted for as derivative liabilities if the warrants allow for cash settlement or provide for modification of the warrant exercise price in the event subsequent sales of common stock

by the Company are at a lower price per share than the then-current warrant exercise price. We classify derivative warrant liabilities on the balance sheet at fair value, and changes in
fair value during the periods presented in the statement of operations, which is revalued at each balance sheet date subsequent to the initial issuance of the stock warrant. As of

December 31, 2016, the following warrants are outstanding:

Issued to Amount Issue Date Expiration Date Exercise Price

Term Note Lender(1) 2,343,750 9/30/2016 9/30/2021 0.80
Investment Bank 1,969,837 12/9/2012 12/9/2019 0.20
Investment Bank 2,434,539 10/31/2014 10/31/2021 0.20
Equity Investors 2,487,000 9/8/2016 9/8/2021 0.80
Equity Investors 2,423,688 9/29/2016 9/29/2021 0.80
Equity Investors 2,589,312 10/12/2016 10/12/2021 0.80
Term Note Lender (1) 2,500,000 11/11/2016 11/11/2021 0.40

T Termie

(1) Warrants were determined to be a derivative subject to fair value accounting and are booked as a warrant liability.

A summary of the warrant activity from the year ended September 30, 2015, the transitional three months ended December 31, 2015, and the year ended December 31, 2016 is

presented below:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Exercise Life Intrinsic
Warrants Price In Years Value
Outstanding, September 30, 2014 2,918,254 $ 0.89 1.2
Issued - - -
Exercised - - -
Expired (2,173,255) 1.00 -
Outstanding, September 20, 2015 744,999 58 0.3
Issued - - -
Exercised - - -
Expired (307,664) 40 -
Outstanding, December 31, 2015 437,335 $ 0.58 0.2
Issued 16,748,126 0.64 -
Exercised - - -
Expired (437,335) .40
Outstanding, December 31, 2016 16,748,126 $ 0.55 4.6
Exercisable, December 31, 2016 16,748,126 $ 0.55 4.6
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FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY, continued
Warrants, continued
The following table presents information related to common stock warrants at December 31, 2016:

Warrants Outstanding Warrants Exercisable

Weighted
Average Exercisable
Exercise Number of Remaining Life Number of
Price Warrants In Years Warrants

$ 0.20 4,404,376 4.0 4,404,376
0.40 6,250,000 49 6,250,000
0.80 6,093,750 4.7 6,093,750
16,748,126 16,748,126

The Company has assessed its outstanding equity-linked financial instruments issued with the term loan cited in Footnote 8 and has concluded that the warrants are subject to
derivative accounting as a result of certain anti-dilution provisions and other contractual language contained in the warrants. The fair value of these warrants is classified as a liability
in the financial statements, with the change in fair value during the future periods being recorded in the statement of operations. The following table summarizes the calculated
aggregate fair values for the warrant derivative liability using the Lattice Model method based on the following assumptions:

September Warrant November Warrant
December 31,2016 December 31, 2016
September Warrant November Warrant Revaluation Revaluation
Risk free rate 1.14% 1.5% 1.91% 1.92%
Volatility 37.80% 37.40 37.53% 37.40%
Dividends 0 0 0 0
Time to maturity 5.0 years 5.0 years 4.75 years 4.87 years
Fair value per share price .06111 1544 0724 1697
Fair value of warrants $ 143,200 $ 386,000 169,700 424,300
The following table summarizes the change in fair value of the warrants from inception through December 31, 2016.
Fair value Fair value
as of New Derivative as of
9/30/2016 Issuances gain (loss) 12/31/2016
Investor warrants (9/30/16) $ (143,200) - $ (26,500) $ (169,700)
Investor warrants (11/11/16) $ (386,000) N (38,3000 $ (424,300)
Totals $ (143,200) $ (386,000) $ (64,800) $ (594,000
Temporary Equity

In conjunction with the Lateral senior credit agreement dated October 28, 2015, the Company also entered into a Redemption Rights Agreement (“agreement”). Contained in this
agreement is a put provision related to the shares of stock issued as a condition of the transaction. The Redemption Rights may be exercised at any time on or after October 28, 2017,
provided the following conditions are met:

(i) The Company’s market capitalization on such date is equal to greater than $25,000,000, or (ii) the last twelve months earnings before interest, taxes depreciation, and
amortization ending on the last day of the month preceding such date is greater than $3,000,000. Further, the Redemption Rights are barred from being exercised if the exercise
of such Redemption Rights would, in good faith, prevent the Company from continuing as a going concern. The Redeemable Shares are redeemable at the per share price implied
by 10 multiplied by the Company’s LTM EBITDA, multiplied by the Ownership Percentage, divided by the number of Redeemable shares then held.An analysis was performed,
under ASC 480-10-25-7 to determine if the redeemable shares should be classified as debt or equity. The results of therefore should not be classified as debt. Pursuant to ASC
480-10-S99, preferred stock redeemable for cash or other assets are to be classified outside of permanent equity if it is redeemable with any one of the following characteristics:

e At a fixed or determinable price on a fixed or determinable date,
o At the option of the shareholder, or
e Upon the occurrence of an event that is not solely within the control of the reporting entity.

The Redeemable Shares are redeemable upon the occurrence of certain events that are not solely within the control of the reporting entity. In the natural course of pursuing the
fulfillment of its required fiduciary duties, the Company may meet the conditions upon which the shares would become redeemable (i.e. market capitalization and/or EBITDA, along
with going concern status), and would be thus unable to control the events leading to redemption. As a result of the evaluation, the Company has concluded that the Redeemable Shares
are appropriately classified outside of permanent equity as temporary equity. The Redeemable Shares originally issued with the transaction, 163,441 of Series D Preferred Convertible
shares and 391,903 of Series F Preferred Convertible shares, were converted to 11,106,880 shares of the Company’s Common Stock on or around May 26, 2016. The conversion was
completed due to the mandatory conversion feature of the preferred shares due to the reverse split of the Company’s Common Stock on May 26, 2016.
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Reverse Split

On December 23, 2015, the Board unanimously authorized and approved an amendment to our Articles of Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split of our Common Stock at a 1-for-
20 ratio (the “Reverse Split”) and increase our common shares authorized to 200,000,000. On December 30, 2015, stockholders holding a majority of our voting power approved by
written consent the amendment to our Articles of Incorporation, which would affect the Reverse Split. The Reverse Split will reduce the number of outstanding shares of our Common
Stock by reclassifying and converting all outstanding shares of our Common Stock into a proportionately fewer number of shares of Common Stock. The reverse stock was approved
by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA™) on May 25, 2016 and effectuated on May 26, 2016. In conjunction with the Reverse Split approval, all of the Series D and
Series F preferred convertible shares mandatorily converted to common shares at a 1-for-20 ratio. All periods presented in this Form 10-K have been adjusted for the reverse split.

13.SEGMENT DATA

The Company’s reportable operating segments consist of its telecommunications segment and its staffing segment, which are organized, managed and operated along key product and
service lines. The Company allocates its Corporate Overhead between its two operating segments.

The following tables summarize financial information about the Company’s business segments for the year ended December 31, 2016, the transitional three months ended December
31,2015, and the year ended September 30, 2015.

For the Year Ended
September 30, 2015
Telecommunications Staffing Consolidated
Revenues, net of discounts $ 8,722,147 $ 5,666,535 $ 14,388,682
Income (Loss) from Operations $ (1,657,238) $ 50,417 $ (1,606,821)
Depreciation and Amortization $ 108,324 $ = $ 108,324
Interest Expense $ 1,281,445 $ 26,631 $ 1,308,076
For the Transitional Three Months Ended December 31, 2015
Telecommunications Staffing Consolidated
Revenues, net of discounts $ 1,185,670 1,885,135 3,070,805
Income (Loss) from Operations $ (2,483,328) 186,842 (2,296,486)
Depreciation and Amortization $ 169,574 - 169,574
Interest Expense $ 431,153 4,310 435,463
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016
Telecommunications Staffing Consolidated
Revenues, net of discounts $ 12,161,022 108,057 12,269,079
Income (Loss) from Operations $ (2,459,910) 58,389 (2,401,521)
Depreciation and Amortization $ 1,241,231 — 1,241,231
Interest Expense $ 2,251,151 21,122 2,272,273




FTE NETWORKS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Stock Purchase Agreement

On March 9, 2017, the Company, entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with (i) Benchmark, and (ii) each of Benchmark’s stockholders. On April 20,
2017 (the “Closing Date”), FTE Networks, Inc. (“FTE Networks”) acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock (the “Benchmark Shares™) of Benchmark
Builders, Inc., a privately held New York corporation (“Benchmark”) from each of its stockholders (collectively, the “Sellers”), pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of
March 9, 2017, by and among FTE Networks, Benchmark, and the Sellers (the “Purchase Agreement”), as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of
the Closing Date (the “Purchase Agreement Amendment” and together with the Purchase Agreement, the “Amended Purchase Agreement”). FTE Networks, Benchmark, and the
Sellers, entered into the Purchase Agreement Amendment in order to address certain changes in the purchase price as set forth in the Purchase Agreement. As described in FTE
Networks’ Current Report on Form 8-K filed with filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on March 9, 2017, the Purchase Agreement provided that the
consideration to the Sellers for the Benchmark Shares would consist of (i) $55,000,000 in cash consideration, (ii) an aggregate of 17,825,350 shares of the Company’s common stock,
and (iil) promissory notes in the aggregate amount of $10,000,000 to the Sellers. The Purchase Agreement Amendment has, inter alia, modified the purchase price set forth in the
Purchase Agreement to consist of (i) cash consideration of approximately $17,250,000, subject to certain prospective working capital adjustments (the “Cash
Consideration”),approximately $10 million cash provided by Lateral and $7 million provided by certain of the sellers, (ii) 26,738,445 shares of FTE Networks’ common stock (the
“FTE Shares”), (iii) convertible promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $12,500,000 to certain stockholders of Benchmark (the “Series A Notes”, which mature on April
20, 2019), (iv) promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $30,000,000 to certain stockholders of Benchmark (the “Series B Notes”, which mature on April 20, 2020) and
(v) promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $7,500,000 to certain stockholders of Benchmark (the “Series C Notes”, which mature on October 20, 2018, and together
with the Series A Notes and the Series B Notes, the “Notes”) in the Amended Purchase Agreement. Additionally, Lateral amended its existing credit facility to provide for the
approximate $10 million cash and to restructure the existing debt, which now has a maturity date of March 30, 2019.

Common Stock Transactions

On January 12, 2017, the Company issued 20,892 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $12,535 for settlement of a legal matter.

On January 12, 2017, the Company issued 37,500 shares of its common stock to an individual investor, which resulted in net proceeds to the Company of $15,000.

On January 18, 2017, the Company issued 300,000 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $123,000 pursuant to a consulting agreement.

On January 19, 2017, the Company issued 100,000 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $46,000 pursuant to a consulting agreement.

On January 20, 2017, the Company issued 50,000 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $25,000 pursuant to a consulting agreement.

On February 2, 2017, the Company issued 12,500 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $5,000 pursuant to a consulting agreement.

On February 7, 2017, the Company issued 70,000 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $35,000 pursuant to a consulting agreement.

On February 9, 2017, the Company issued 62,500 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $30,625 to an employee as part of his compensation.

On February 17, 2017, the Company issued 40,000 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $28,000 pursuant to a consulting agreement.

On February 24, 2017, the Company issued 25,000 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $12,500 pursuant to a consulting agreement.

On March 1, 2017, the Company issued 50,000 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $25,000 pursuant to a consulting agreement

On March 3, 2017, the Company issued 6,420,020 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $6,420 to its senior lender.

On March 7, 2017, the Company issued 83,143 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $36,583 to settle debt.

On March 7, 2017, the Company issued 6,666 shares of its common stock to an individual investor, resulting in net proceeds to the Company of $4,000.

On March 9, 2017, the Company issued 5,140 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $2,056 for settlement of debt.

On March 27, 2017, the Company issued 2,983,017 shares of its common stock to various employees with a grant date value of $1,193,207 per their employment agreements.

On March 27, 2017, the Company issued 78,619 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $32,119 for consulting services.

On March 28, 2017, the Company issued 37,500 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $19,125 to an employee per his employment agreement.

On April 21, 2017, the Company issued 26,738,445 shares of its common stock with a grant date value of $14,975,935 to certain Benchmark Builders Inc. shareholders in conjunction
with the acquisition of Benchmark.
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15. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND CASH FLOWS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Revenues, net of discounts
Cost of revenues
Gross Profit

Operating Expenses

Compensation expense - selling, general, and administrative
Selling, general and administrative expenses

Travel expense

Occupancy costs

Total Operating Expenses

Operating (Loss) Income

Other Income (Expense)
Interest expense

Other (expense) income

Total Other Income (Expense)

Net Income

Preferred stock dividends
Net Income attributable to common shareholders

Earnings per share:
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic

Diluted

(unaudited)

For the Three Months Ended
December 31, 2014

2,944,035
1,718,238

1,225,797

293,575
359,280
60,530
37,558

750,943

474,354

(263,197)
7,997

(255,200)

219,654

(19,890)

199,764

1,999,354

2,062,395




Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in operating activities:
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Stock incentive expense to employees
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of original issue discount
Gain on extinguishment of senior debt
Payment in kind interest-senior debt
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Other current assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Restricted cash account

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Payments on factor lines of credit, net

Proceeds from issuance of notes payable

Payments on notes payable

Proceeds from issuance of notes payable-related parties
Proceeds from repayment of subscriptions receivable
Payment of deferred financing costs prior to closing
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash

Cash, beginning of period

Cash, end of period

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest

Non-cash financing activities:
Notes payable issued to finance equipment purchases

Unpaid subscription for preferred shares
Repayment subscription receivable
Issuance of notes payable

Common stock issued for legal settlement
Common stock issued for notes payable
Preferred stock issued for notes payable
Accrued dividends, preferred stock

For the Three Months Ended
December 31,

2015 2014 (unaudited)

$ 546,171 $ 219,654
72,876 -

342,743 -

96,698 9,562

36,448 -

(3,431,533) -

48,682 -
(231,035) (887,302)

4,977 59,020

1,076,170 199,496
(1,437,803) (399,570)
(94,358) (153,893)

(3,003,226) -
(3,097,584) (153.893)

(600,554) -

8,000,000 -
(2,194,376) (6,419)

62,226 -

140,000 600,000

(874,516) -

4,532,780 593,581

(2,607) 40,118

207,740 1,254

$ 205,133 $ 41,372
S 264,865 $ 94,443
$ 1,127,797 $ 94,169
S - $ 783,672
$ 5,000 $ 60,000
$ 288,000 $ -
$ 5,120 $ -
$ 139,701 $ -
$ 25,000 $ -
$ 19,890 $ 19,890
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FTE NETWORKS, INC.
SECURITIES TRADING POLICY

A. INTRODUCTION

FTE Networks, Inc. (the “Company”) recognizes that its directors, officers, and other employees may invest from time to time in
the common stock of the Company. However, all of the Company’s employees must exercise caution to conduct these transactions in
compliance with applicable securities laws. In particular, all employees must avoid trading in the Company’s securities while in possession
of material, non-public information about the Company.

This policy governs trading in the Company’s securities by the following persons (“Covered Persons™): all executive officers,
directors, employees, and agents of the Company, and its subsidiaries, the Immediate Family Members (as defined below) of executive
officers, directors and employees of the Company; and any entities influenced or controlled by any of the foregoing persons, including
corporations, partnerships or trusts. The policy is designed to assist persons in possession of material non-public information (so-called
“insiders”) in determining when trading in the Company’s securities is appropriate. The policy also restricts trading by Covered Persons in
certain circumstances in order to avoid any transaction which might result in a violation of applicable securities laws. These guidelines
cover not only the purchase and sale of common stock, but also the purchase and sale of options, warrants, puts, calls, and other convertible
securities.

These guidelines also address additional obligations of the following persons under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) (“Section 16 Insiders”): the Company’s directors, executive officers and holders of more than 10%
of the outstanding shares of any class of the Company’s securities registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act. Section 16(b) requires
Section 16 Insiders to disgorge “short-swing” profits realized from the purchase and sale of the Company’s securities within a six-month
period. Section 16(a) imposes extensive reporting obligations.

B. WHAT IS MATERIAL, NON-PUBLIC INFORMATION?

This policy relates primarily to “material, non-public information” about the Company. Material information is information that
could be expected to affect the investment decision of a reasonable investor or to alter significantly the market price of the Company’s
common stock or other securities. Examples of such information include proposed mergers or acquisitions, changes in dividends, changes
in expected operating results (favorable or unfavorable), quarterly and annual earnings announcements, and any other important business
developments.

Material information is “non-public” if it has not been widely disseminated to the public. Such dissemination occurs when the
information is reported in the Company’s annual or quarterly reports, is the subject of a prior widely-disseminated press release, or is

widely reported in the media through market letters, analysts’ reports, statistical services or other means.
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C. THE COMPANY’S BASIC POLICY

The Company’s basic policy regarding the use of material, non-public information is as follows:

1. No Unauthorized Disclosure of Material Non-Public Information

All Covered Persons have an obligation to maintain the confidentiality of material information about the Company and its
activities. Covered Persons may not disclose any material, non-public information to third parties, including friends, relatives, or
acquaintances. Such information may only be disclosed to the Company’s other employees and agents who have a clear right to know the
information in order to fulfill their responsibilities to the Company.

Any Covered Person who participates in an unauthorized disclosure of material information will be subject to disciplinary action
by the Company, and will be liable to the Company for any losses caused by such disclosure.

In order to avoid any unintentional disclosures of material information, all Covered Persons (except the Company’s Spokesperson,
as defined below) should avoid discussions with third parties with respect to Company matters that might be considered material and
confidential. Inquiries received from third parties relating to Company information which may be material or confidential should be
referred to the Company’s Spokesperson. See “Compliance With SEC Regulation FD,” below. If an employee believes he or she has
inadvertently disclosed material confidential information to a third party, he or she should contact the Chief Executive Officer immediately.

2. No Trading on Material Information Prior To Disclosure

No Covered Person of the Company may trade in the Company’s securities if he or she is in possession of material, non-public
information, except for: (a) the exercise of any stock option, or the vesting of any restricted stock, previously granted to such person by the
Company (but not the sale of the underlying common stock, including for purposes of paying the exercise price of an option); or (b) any
sale of securities to, or purchase of securities from, the Company that either would not constitute a purchase or sale under Section 16(b) of
the Exchange Act or would constitute an exempt transaction under Section 16(b); provided any such purchase under the Company’s 401 (k)
plan or employee stock purchase plan is pursuant to standing instructions not entered into or modified during any period in which the
Covered Person was in possession of material, non-public information; or (c) any transaction with the Company that has been approved by
the Board of Directors (the “Board”); or (d) purchases or sales made pursuant to a Qualified Trading Program (as defined in Section C.4.
below). The transactions described in subsections (a) through (d) above are referred to herein as “Exempt Trades.”

In addition, Covered Persons may not trade in the securities of another company if he or she is in possession of material, non-
public information concerning such other company that is learned in the course of his or her service as an executive officer, director or
employee of the Company.
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A Covered Person who uses material, non-public information to trade in the Company’s securities will violate civil and criminal
provisions of federal securities laws. This liability may also extend to outsiders who receive such information and use it to trade in the
Company’s securities. If the Covered Person is uncertain whether the information is material, or whether it has been disclosed to the
public, he or she must discuss the matter with the Company’s Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer.

3. No Trading on Material Information Until Two Business Days After Disclosure

Except for Exempt Trades, no Covered Person may trade in the Company’s securities until two business days after the date of the
public release of the material information by the Company. This delay is necessary to permit the dissemination of this information to the
investing public.

4, Qualified Trading Program

Any Covered Person may request that a written contract, instruction or plan for the purchase or sale of Company securities (a
“Trading Program”) be designated a ‘Qualified Trading Program” by submitting such trading program to the Chief Financial Officer, or
such other officer as the Board may determine from time to time (each, a “Designated Officer”), together with a certification that such
Covered Person was not aware of any material, non-public information concerning the Company or the Company securities at the time of
entering into such Trading Program (other than information which will be made public before the execution of the first transaction
thereunder). Upon receipt of such a request, the Designated Officer shall determine whether to designate the Trading Program as a
Qualified Trading Program for purposes of this policy, taking into account all factors that he or she shall deem relevant in his or her sole
discretion (after consultation with the Company’s legal counsel), including whether the Trading Program appears on its face to be
responsive to the requirements of SEC Rule 10b5-1. A Trading Program shall cease to be a Qualified Trading Program for purposes of this
policy: (a) at any time that the Designated Officer so determines;(b) if there is a deviation in any transaction from the terms specified in
such Trading Program; or (c) if the person entering into such Trading Program hedges or seeks to offset the consequence of any transaction
pursuant to such Trading Program.

5. No Short Sales
No Covered Person shall sell any equity security of the Company if such Covered Person either: (a) does not own the security
sold, or (b) does not deliver the security against such sale within twenty days thereafter or does not within five days after such sale deposit

the security in the mails or other usual channels of transportation.
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D. OTHER TRADING RESTRICTIONS

In addition to the Company’s basic policy, the Company has adopted the following specific trading restrictions in order to
implement its policy. These restrictions do not apply to Exempt Trades, as described in Section C.2. above.

1. Trading Restrictions Based on Quarterly Results

No Covered Person may trade in the Company’s securities during the period starting [two weeks] prior to the end of each of the
Company’s first three fiscal quarters and ending on the second business day after the date that the Company announces its earnings results
for that quarter. This restriction applies even if the insider is not in possession of material, non-public information.

2. Trading Restrictions Based on Annual Results

No Covered Person may trade in the Company’s securities during the period starting [two weeks] prior to the end of any fiscal
year and ending two business days after the Company announces its annual earnings.

3. Trading Restrictions Related to Proxy Statements and Registration Statements

No Covered Person may trade in the Company’s securities for a period of two business days after any material filings made by the
Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Such filings might include proxy statements, registration statements, and Current
Reports on Form 8-K.

4, Trading Restrictions Related to General News Release

No Covered Person may trade in the Company’s securities for a period of two business days after any press release of a general
nature (i.e., regarding new contracts, plant openings, staff appointments, etc.).

5. Trading Restrictions Announced by the Company

No Covered Person may trade in the Company’s securities during any restricted period announced by the Company. The
Company may make announcements from time to time due to pending negotiations regarding acquisition and financing, or other material
corporate developments which have not yet been disclosed to the public.

No [Covered Person] may inform an individual or entity not considered a “Covered Person” that a trading restriction under this
paragraph 5 is in effect.
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E. CERTAIN IMMEDIATE FAMILY MEMBERS ARE SUBJECT TO POLICY

This policy shall apply to purchases and sales of Company securities by or for the account of an Immediate Family Member of an
executive officer or director of the Company to the same extent as to such transactions by or for the account of such officer or director. As
used in this policy, “Immediate Family Member” means: (a) any parent, child, spouse or sibling of an executive officer, director or
employee of the Company, other than adult family members who do not live with or depend financially on such officer, director or
employee and who exercise independent control over their personal investment decisions; (b) any trust or similar arrangement for the
benefit of an executive officer, director or employee or a person who is otherwise an Immediate Family Member; and (c) any personal
charitable foundation or similar arrangement established by an executive officer, director or employee or a person who is otherwise an
Immediate Family Member.

F. SUMMARY
The purpose of these guidelines is to assist Covered Persons in developing an investment strategy that will satisfy their personal
needs and comply with applicable securities laws. Its overriding goal is to establish fairness for all segments of the investing public,

particularly the shareholders of the Company, and to avoid the appearance of any conflict of interest.

The guidelines are summarized as follows:

Situation Policy

Material information No trading permitted prior to disclosure

Material information after disclosure No trading until two business days after disclosure

First, Second and Third Fiscal quarters No trading from after the end of quarter until two business days after

earnings release

Fiscal year No trading from after the end of the fiscal year until two business
days after earnings release

Securities filings No trading for two business days after filing
General news releases No trading for two business days after release
Restricted trading periods No trading without written permission of Chief Executive Officer
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G. SHORT SWING PROFITS

The Company’s Section 16 Insiders are also subject to Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act and the rules promulgated thereunder.
Section 16(b) provides for disgorgements of profits by these persons in connection with sales and purchases of the Company’s equity
securities within a six-month period. The rules under Section 16(b) are very complicated and often are broadly construed. If you have any
questions regarding its application, you should promptly discuss them with the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and/or outside legal
counsel.

Under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, most changes in a Section 16 Insider’s beneficial ownership of equity securities of the
Company must be filed electronically with the SEC on Form 4 before the end of the second business day following the day on which a
transaction resulting in a change of beneficial ownership is executed. In addition to purchases and sales, the two-day requirement applies to
transactions involving stock and option grants, restricted stock grants, and most other equity compensation transactions. A very limited
number of transactions are reportable on Form 5 at the end of the year, including gifts, inheritances and certain purchases (which, when
combined with other purchases in the preceding six months, amount to less than $10,000).

Any late or delinquent Form 4 filings by Section 16 Insiders are required to be reported in the Company’s proxy statement in a
separate captioned section. The SEC has been granted broad authority by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 to seek “any equitable relief that
may be appropriate or necessary for the benefit of investors™ for violations of any of these (or any other) provisions of the securities laws.
Consequently, it is important to both you and the Company that such filings are made on a timely basis. Again, if you have any questions
concerning the application of Section 16(a), please promptly contact the Company’s Chief Financial Officer or outside legal counsel.

H. COMPLIANCE WITH SEC REGULATION FD

The following provisions govern communications by employees of the Company with securities analysts, fund managers,
reporters, shareholders, and others who are not bound by a duty of confidentiality to the Company (generically referred to herein as
“analysts”), whether direct, at investment conferences, on conference calls, or otherwise.

The only employees authorized to discuss the Company’s affairs with analysts are the Company’s Chairman, President, Chief
Financial Officer, and the Executive Vice Presidents (each referred to as a “Spokesperson”). Any other employee who is
contacted by an analyst must refer the analyst to a Spokesperson. The Company’s Chairman, President, or Chief Financial
Officer may authorize another employee to speak with an analyst with respect to a particular topic or on a particular
occasion.

It is the Company’s policy that all Company communications to analysts comply with applicable law, including Regulation FD
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. A Spokesperson may not provide material information to an analyst unless
such information shall have been previously or is simultaneously disclosed in a manner intended to provide broad, non-
exclusionary distribution of the information to the public. In the event of an inadvertent disclosure of information that
might be material, the disclosing Spokesperson shall consult with counsel as to whether prompt public dissemination of
such information is required.
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A Spokesperson may discuss with analysts the Company’s technology, products, and markets, as well as other factual corporate
information, such as headcount, facilities, and the like, provided such information is not material or has previously been
disclosed publicly.

A Spokesperson may discuss with analysts financial results of operations for completed quarters once those results have been
publicly disclosed, but shall not disclose any material information regarding those results that have not been publicly
disseminated.

A Spokesperson shall not disclose to analysts any material information regarding the Company’s internal projections of future
operating results, pending transactions, customer or supplier developments or other matters that have not been publicly
disseminated. A Spokesperson shall not endorse or ratify revenue or earnings projections made by an analyst or express
comfort with “the range.”

A Spokesperson may review a draft of an analyst’s report, if requested by the analyst to do so, solely for the purpose of correcting
any objective factual errors in the report. A Spokesperson who engages in such a review shall make clear to the analyst
that the Company does not comment on any forward-looking information contained in the report or otherwise endorse the
analyst’s forecasts or financial models.

A Spokesperson will not circulate externally copies of any analyst reports, but rather should refer any such requests to the analyst’s
firm.

In appropriate circumstances, a Spokesperson shall consult with securities counsel to determine compliance with this policy,
Regulation FD, and the safe harbor for forward-looking information.

A Spokesperson may not depart from the principles set forth in this policy without the explicit prior approval of the Company’s
Chairman or President and the Chief Financial Officer.

)] Any violation of this policy shall be brought to the attention of the Company’s senior management and may constitute
“cause” for immediate termination of employment.

The undersigned “Covered Person” hereby acknowledges that he or she has read this Securities Trading Policy and agrees to
comply with the policies and procedures set forth herein. To the extent such Covered Person is an Officer or Director of FTE Networks,

Inc., he/she further agrees that they will inform their immediate family members of these restrictions.
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COVERED PERSON:

By Date

Name

Position with FTE Networks, Inc. (check one)
___ Employee __ Officer __ Director _ Agent
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Focus Venture Partners, Inc.
FTE Holdings, LLC

FTE Wireless, LLC

FTE Network Services, LLC
Optos Capital Partners, LLC
Jus-Com Inc.

Focus-Fiber Solutions, LLC

FTE Networks, Inc. Subsidiary List
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Exhibit 31.1

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Michael Palleschi, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of FTE Networks, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(@) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 11, 2017 /s/ Michael Palleschi

Michael Palleschi
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)







Exhibit 31.2

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, David Lethem, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of FTE Networks, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report.

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in
this report.

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(@) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: May 11, 2017 /s/ David Lethem

David Lethem
(Principal Financial Officer)







Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, the undersigned officer of FTE Networks, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifies that the Company’s

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)
or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all

material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: May 11, 2017

/s/ Michael Palleschi
Michael Palleschi
Principal Executive Officer
Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure document.







Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER

PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, the undersigned officer of FTE Networks, Inc. (the “Company”) hereby certifies that the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)
or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all

material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: May 11, 2017 /s/ David Lethem

David Lethem
Principal Financial Officer
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350 and is not being filed as part of the Report or as a
separate disclosure document.







